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November 1, 2012

The Board of County Commissioners
Citizens of Craven County

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of Craven County for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2012 is submitted herewith. The County’s Finance Department prepares the financial state-
ments and assumes all responsibility for the accuracy of the data, the completeness and fairness
of the presentation, and all disclosures, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal con-
trol that it has established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not ex-
ceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance
that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. Craven County officials be-
lieve the data and presentation are fair and accurate, and that everything necessary is included
in this document to gain an understanding of the County’s financial activities over the last fiscal
year.

Craven County Government’s financial statements have been audited by McGladrey LLP, a firm
of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide rea-
sonable assurance that the financial statements of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon
the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the Coun-
ty's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, are fairly presented in conformi-
ty with generally accepted accounting principles. The independent auditor’s report is presented
as the first component of the financial section of this report. The audit was also designed to
meet the requirements of the Federal Single Audit Act Amendment of 1996, as well as the State
Single Audit Act, N.C.G.S. 159-34. The reports required by these Acts are included in the Com-
pliance Section of this report.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduc-
tion, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Man-
agement'’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement



the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The County’s MD&A can be found imme-
diately following the report of independent auditors.

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The financial reporting entity includes all the funds of the primary government (Craven County),
as well as its component units. Component units are legally separate entities for which the pri-
mary government is financially accountable. Discretely presented component units are reported
in a separate column in the general purpose financial statements to emphasize that they are le-
gally separate from the primary government and to distinguish their financial positions, results of
operations, and cash flows from those of the primary government. The Coastal Carolina Re-
gional Airport Authority (formerly Craven Regional Airport Authority), Craven County Alcoholic
Beverage Control Board, Craven County Tourism Development Authority and CarolinaEast
Health System (formerly Craven Regional Medical Authority) are included as discretely pre-
sented component units in the reporting entity. However, the Craven County Board of Educa-
tion, the Craven-Pamlico-Carteret Regional Library, Eastern Carolina Council of Governments,
Craven Community College, and the Coastal Regional Solid Waste Management Authority have
not met the criteria for inclusion in the reporting entity as component units and, accordingly, the
financial information for these organizations is excluded from this report. Each of these entities
publishes its own annual financial report to which the reader is referred.

PROFILE OF CRAVEN COUNTY

Craven County, chartered in 1712, utilizes a Commissioner-Manager form of government with
seven commissioners who serve four-year terms. The Chairperson is elected by the Commis-
sioners each year for a one year term. The County Manager, County Attorney, and Clerk to the
Board are appointed by, and serve at the pleasure of the County Commissioners. The County
Manager is responsible for administering all affairs of the County and for management of all
County employees.

Craven County is located midway along North Carolina’s lace work coastal fringe and is diverse
in its physical characteristics, demographics and economic base. The County’s land area totals
approximately 712 square miles or 455,680 acres. Settled in 1710 by Swiss and German immi-
grants at the confluence of the Trent and Neuse Rivers, New Bern, the county seat, is the
second oldest town in the state. Rich in history, it is the site of North Carolina’s Colonial Capitol
and its first State Capitol. New Bern is also the Birthplace of Pepsi Cola, a drink first concocted
by Caleb Bradham, a local pharmacist, in 1898. Downtown New Bern offers museums, shops,
galleries, restaurants, historic sites, waterfront hotels, bed and breakfast accommodations, mari-
nas, convention center, parks, historic homes and churches. Tryon Palace Historic Sites & Gar-
dens, the first permanent seat of colonial government in North Carolina, offers visitors an oppor-
tunity to experience 300 years of American history and acres of period inspired gardens.

The City of Havelock, the second largest municipality in Craven County, is home to Cherry
Point, the largest Marine Corps Air Station on the East Coast, employing 5,361 civilian workers.
The Air Station is home of the 2" Marine Aircraft Wing and sits on 13,164 acres of land in Cra-
ven County. The Fleet Readiness Center (FRC) East (formerly known as NADEP), one of eight
fleet readiness centers operated by the U. S. Navy, sits on nearly 150 acres on board Marine
Corps Air Station Cherry Point. FRC East is the largest industrial employer in eastern North
Carolina. The base is also the location of Halyburton Naval Health Clinic.



While still a rural county, Craven County has become much less dependent on agriculture as its
main economic engine. The County has revealed itself as a desirable destination for tourists,
drawn by abundant opportunities for conventions, golf, sailing, beaches, fishing, hunting, and
touring over 150 historic landmarks. The County’s reputation as a desirable retirement commu-
nity is a direct result of its popularity as a tourist destination. The growth of residential develop-
ment aimed at retirees has slowed significantly with the current economic conditions and overall
poor housing market. While housing prices have declined in the past two years, Craven County
has not experienced the dramatic drop in house prices seen in other areas of the country.

THE LOCAL ECONOMY

Craven County’s economy is experiencing much of the same impacts as other areas in the
State. One area which continues to show weakness is home construction and sales. The num-
ber of home sales has declined from 2,009 in calendar year 2007 to 934 in 2011. Price has fal-
len slightly with the average selling price falling 5% in 2011 from the previous year. Per capita
personal income in Craven County increased by 1.6 percent in calendar 2010 (the latest informa-
tion available), to $35,867. The change for the state of North Carolina in 2010 was a 2.5 percent
increase and nationally the change was a 2.8 percent increase. The County’s per capita income
level is 102 percent of the state average, down from 106 percent, and 90 percent of the national
average, down from 93 percent. The County ranked fifteenth out of one hundred counties in the
state in per capita income, down from thirteenth. The 2000-2010 average annual growth rate of
per capita personal income for the County was 3.0 percent, while the average annual growth rate
for the state was 2.3 percent and 2.8 percent for the nation. In the year 2000, the County ranked
twenty-fourth out of 100 counties in the state.

The number of building inspections performed by the Craven County Inspection Department was
flat in fiscal 2012 when compared to 2011. The number of inspections performed in 2012 is still
only 73 percent of fiscal 2007, the peak of the boom market. These amounts do not reflect the
numbers of the two municipalities which have their own inspection departments.

Government (federal, state and local) is the largest single employer in the County with 33.8 per-
cent of all jobs, a slight increase compared to a year ago. This increase is due to two factors; a
minimal increase in government employment of .2 percent, and a decline of 2.5 percent in pri-
vate industry employment. The sectors with the greatest decline in private employment include
construction (down 4.9 percent), finance and insurance (down 12.4 percent) wholesale trade
(down 7.9 percent), and professional and technical services (down 8.6 percent). The only sec-
tors showing gains in employment were retail trade (up 3.3 percent) and transportation and wa-
rehousing (up 19.9 percent). This data is based on comparing the calendar year 2010 data to
calendar year 2011.

The U.S. Marine Corps Air Station at Cherry Point provides employment for a total work force of
14,915 personnel, including 5,361 civilian jobs. The same numbers a year ago were 15,207 and
5,408. The number of civilian jobs at the Fleet Readiness Center East (the single largest indus-
trial employer east of 1-95) located at Cherry Point Marine Corps Air Station was down 2.9 per-
cent from the previous year. The total payroll for the base in calendar 2010, including Fleet
Readiness Center East, was $1.29 billion while the total economic impact of the Marine Corps
Air Station at Cherry Point, including the FRC East, was $2.0 billion. The military and the local
community have developed a strong relationship from which both have benefited. Other major
employment categories in the County are health care and social assistance with 16.9 percent,
accommodation and food services with 9.2 percent, and manufacturing with 8.4 percent of the
total workforce.



The 2011 calendar year annual average unemployment rate in Craven County remained flat at
11 percent, the same as calendar 2010. The statewide average for calendar year 2011 was 10.5
percent, down slightly from 10.6 percent in 2010. Overall, employment at major manufacturing
employers in the County was relatively unchanged. There was a decrease in employment at
both the City of New Bern and Craven County. The unemployment rate for July 2012 in the
County was 9.9 percent, a significant improvement over the 2011 calendar year average of 11
percent.

With many historic sites and homes, 40 miles of navigable rivers, the Croatan National Forest,
and abundant lakes and wildlife, the County continues to emphasize and capitalize on tourism.
Tryon Palace, the first State Capitol, was authentically reconstructed in the 1950's and is consi-
dered the main attraction in the downtown historic district of the City of New Bern. The State of
North Carolina has completed construction of the North Carolina History Center, an educa-
tion/visitor center for the Tryon Palace situated between the Palace and the Doubletree (formerly
the Hilton Hotel), near the Convention Center. The County contributed over a million dollars to
the interactive museum/education center project. The new building contains two major mu-
seums—the Pepsi Family Center and the Regional History Museum, as well as a 200-seat state-
of-the-art performing arts hall, exhibit and orientation theaters, a museum store, a waterfront
café, and program and administrative space. The Palace implemented a reduction in employ-
ment as a result of budget cuts by the State in both fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2013 and is working to
deal with the significant reduction in State funding to the Palace.

Domestic tourism in Craven County generated an economic impact of $116 million in calendar
year 2011, an increase of 7.4 percent from 2010. State and local tax revenues from travel to
Craven County amounted to $8.93 million which represents an $85.22 tax savings to each coun-
ty resident. Hotel occupancy in the County was up and the occupancy tax collected by the Coun-
ty for the Tourism and Development Authority experienced the best year of collections on record.
According to North Carolina Division of Tourism, Film and Sports Development, in calendar
2011 there were 1,040 jobs in Craven County related to tourism with an annual payroll of $21.39
million.

The New Bern Riverfront Convention Center, located in historic downtown New Bern, was con-
structed by the County at a cost of $12 million and opened in August of 2000. The facility is ap-
proximately 45,000 square feet and houses a 12,000 square foot ballroom designed to seat and
serve groups up to 1,500. The site is adjacent to one of the major hotel facilities in the down-
town area and within walking distance of two other hotels and several bed and breakfast facili-
ties. Operating revenues increased to $674,000 in fiscal 2012 from $629,000 in fiscal 2011. The
Center incurred an operating deficit of $298,000 in fiscal 2011 which included capital outlay of
$126,000 for HVAC replacement. The total budgeted deficit was $363,000. The Center was not
built with the expectation that it would generate a direct profit but to provide an economic stimu-
lus for the County. The Center hosted 320 groups in fiscal 2012 and generated approximately
$9.4 million of economic impact to the community during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.
The debt incurred for the Center is serviced through the increase in occupancy tax enacted in
November 1996 from 3 percent to 6 percent.



LONG TERM PLANNING

Providing the services desired by its citizens and those required by statute during a period of
economic slowdown is a recurring challenge faced by all local governments. During fiscal 2012
the County’s General Fund balance increased $2,257,572. The County’s unassigned General
Fund balance at June 30, 2012, represents 24.8 percent of actual expenditures and transfers out
for fiscal year 2012. The tax rate for fiscal 2012 remained at $.4728 per hundred dollars of valu-
ation for the second year. The County last conducted a reappraisal of all County real property as
of January 1, 2010. Property values increased from $9.58 billion to $9.61 billion, or.32 percent.
This slight increase was a resuit of very little new construction in the County during the year.

The estimate of property values for fiscal 2013 is $9.67 billion and reflects the continuation of
low growth in the tax base due to the economy. The budget for fiscal 2013 was adopted with a
tax rate of $.47 per hundred dollars of valuation, a slight decrease from the previous year.
Budgeted expenditures of the General Fund are reduced by 3.4 percent from the final budget of
2012, to $94.0 million, and budgeted revenues are the same and include a $417,000 appropria-
tion of the County’s fund balance to balance the fiscal 2013 budget.

Capital needs of the County are assessed on an annual basis. The Capital Improvement Plan
serves as the basis for the County's annual capital budget. The Capital Improvement Plan pro-
vides a framework for capital additions and the method of financing those projects for a five year
period. The Capital Reserve Fund maintained by the County is a primary source of funding for
capital projects. These funds allow the County to pay for future capital needs as they arise.
Transfers of $983,000 were made during 2012 to the general fund and EOC project for capital
items funded by the capital reserve fund. The County did not make an appropriation to the capi-
tal reserve fund in the fiscal 2013 budget, however, in September, 2012 the County received an
$865,000 check from the ABC Board for excess profits from fiscal 2012. These funds were
placed in the Capital Reserve Fund by direction of the Board of Commissioners for future capital
needs.

The County continues its plans to renovate the former Sheriff office and jail to house the Emer-
gency Services offices, a permanent Emergency Operation Center (EOC), expansion of the E-
911 center, and provide generator supported facilities as the primary location for the County’s
computer hardware. Currently the County activates the EOC in a courtroom in the Courthouse
Annex building on an as needed basis. This involves moving a lot of technology into place and
interferes with the Court schedule. The data processing center is currently located in the County
Administration Building. Bids for this project are anticipated very soon.

Upcoming plans for the County water system include the continued alternate water source
project in response to restrictions imposed by the State limiting the volume of water that users of
the Black Creek aquifer may withdraw. All entities using the Black Creek were mandated to
make a 25 percent reduction in the Black Creek withdrawals by 2008, 50 percent reduction by
2013, and 75 percent reduction by 2018 (if required). Craven County met the 25% reduction by
drilling five wells into the Pee Dee aquifer and blending the water with the remaining Black Creek
water. The five wells were drilled on the same sites as the five Black Creek wells and provided
sufficient water to reach the goal of the 25 percent reduction mandated for 2008.



The Pee Dee aquifer wells will not allow the County to meet the 2013 goal of 50% reduction from
the Black Creek aquifer. The County was forced to find another water source to meet the goal.
In 2008, the County engaged an engineer to update a plan of future demands on the system to
allow the decision of how to meet the next required reduction. This study was completed during
fiscal 2009 and the recommendation was to proceed with wells in the Castle Hayne aquifer. Dur-
ing 2009, the County drilled test wells in the Castle Hayne aquifer near the Carolina Pines subdi-
vision between New Bern and Havelock. In 2012 the test wells were completed and one produc-
tion well was drilled. The flow from these wells exceeded expectations and as a result only 5
wells will be required to provide water to the 2 million gallon per day treatment plant. It was in-
itially thought there would be a need for up to nine wells. This water will require advanced treat-
ment and the need for a treatment plant located on the east side of the Trent River to provide
water for all customers on that side of the river. The County acquired a 10 acre site for the plant
and one well in 2011 and has closed on land providing 7 more well sites in 2012. In 2012 the
County contracted with the engineer to design the plant, distribution system and discharge sys-
tem. The plant will be designed to provide a maximum of 5.0 million gallons of water per day but
the initial phase will be to construct treatment for only 2 million gallons per day. Plans include
bidding an additional million gallons (total of three) as an alternate to the construction bid. The
estimated cost of the total project is approximately $29 million for phase one with another $5 mil-
lion for the alternate of adding another million gallons production and three more wells.

Water rates were increased by an average amount of 15% in October 2011. This was not an
across the board increase but was done with two purposes; to provide funds for the plant debt
service and to encourage conservation. The inclining rate schedule was increased more for the
higher quantities than the small quantities. The 0 to 3,000 gallon per month bracket was ad-
justed upward 11% while the over 15,000 gallons per month bracket went up by 60%. The exist-
ing Black Creek and Pee Dee wells will serve all customers on the western side of the river for
the foreseeable future. In September, 2012 the County applied for a $3 million planning loan
from the Division of Water Quality (DENR) to provide funds that will cover costs up to the bid-
ding phase of the project. In 2014 the County will apply for a loan from DENR for the construc-
tion phase of the project. The County expects to pay approximately $15 million of the project
costs from funds on hand.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Coun-
ty of Craven for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011, the twenty second consecutive year this award was received. The Certificate of Achieve-
ment is a prestigious national award, recognizing conformance with the highest standards for
preparation of state and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents con-
form to program standards. Such CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of
one year only. We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achieve-
ment program requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA.



Acknowledgments. The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report was made
possible by the entire Craven County Finance Department: Aletta Brown, Assistant Finance Di-
rector, Karla Wright, Christy Foreman, Rosie Brinson, Andrea Brookins, Donna Nelson, Rosema-
ry Osterhus, Nancy Dawson, and Craig Warren. Also of significant assistance in the preparation
of the report were Martha Wayne, Patty Dudley, Judith McKnight, Kristi Waters and Gary Ridge-
way of McGladrey LLP.

The information presented in this report illustrates the progressive leadership and support pro-
vided by the Craven County Board of Commissioners. Without the Board’s guidance and initia-
tive, the financial activities of Craven County would not be able to operate in a fiscally stable and
responsible manner.

Respectively submitted,

Cack BNeA T )ETJN;VJJ

f
~"Jack B. Veit, lll, County Manager Rick Hemphill, Finance Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS







Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of County Commissioners
Craven County
New Bern, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Craven County, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30.
2012, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Craven County’s management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these basic financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of Craven County Alcoholic Beverage Control (“ABC") Board or
CarolinaEast Health System (“Health System”), which are discretely presented component units of the
County. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for ABC and the Health
System, is based on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. The financial statements of Craven County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board and
CarolinaEast Health System were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An
audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the basic financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Craven County, North Carolina as of June 30.
2012, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the
respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 1,
2012 on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of
our audit.
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's
Discussion and analysis and other required supplementary information on pages 15 through 26 and
pages 89 through 90 be presented to the supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtain during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the basic financial statements of Craven County, North Carolina. The combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements and other schedules listed in the table of contents as other
supplementary information and the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards and passenger
facility charges as required by OMB A-133, the State Single Audit Implementation Act and the Passenger
Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies issued by the Federal Aviation Administration are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. This information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements and other schedules listed as other supplementary information and the schedule of
expenditures of federal and State awards and passenger facility charges are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the basic financial statements of Craven County, North Carolina. The introductory section and
statistical tables are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion or provide any
assurance on it.

/’%&gf% £ £

New Bern, North Carolina
November 1, 2012
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Craven County
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
June 30, 2012

As management of Craven County, we offer readers of Craven County’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Craven County for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012. We encourage readers to read the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the County’'s financial
statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

The assets of Craven County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by
$65,264,632.

The government's total net assets increased by $3,050,964. Of this amount, $1,301,564
was an increase in the net assets of the Water Fund and the remaining $1,749,400
increase in net assets was in the governmental activities and resulted from under spending
appropriations and higher sales and occupancy tax revenue.

The net assets of the governmental activities are lower than one would expect due to the
method used in North Carolina to record the debt and asset related to school buildings.
Under North Carolina law, the County is responsible for providing capital funding for the
public schools and community college. The capital assets funded by the County are owned
by the public school system and community college and are not recorded as an asset of the
County. The County, however, does recognize a liability for the debt issued to fund these
projects. As of June 30, 2012, the outstanding balance of school related debt was
$47,188,550.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, Craven County’s governmental funds reported
combined fund balances of $40,236,721 a decrease of $637,580 for the year. This
decrease was created in four governmental funds: the County Reserve Fund decreased
due to transfers to the General Fund and the EOC Capital Project Fund; the Qualified
School Construction Bond Fund decreased due to the ongoing construction of the various
school projects and payments to contractors; the Debt Service Fund decreased due to the
normal school debt payments and required use of fund balance to make up for the loss of
ADM revenue and lottery revenue caused by the State; and the Emergency Telephone
Fund decreased due to the allowed use of fund balance for one time public safety
purposes. The decline in fund balances of these four funds, totaling $3,181,198 was
partially offset by an increase in the fund balance of the General Fund of $2,257,572. This
increase was due to actual expenditures being approximately $4 million less than budget.
Expenditures were below budget in all departments of the County but the most significant
variances were in the General Government, Health and Social Services functions. The
General Government variance was due primarily to expenses related to Hurricane Irene.
The costs of repairs and debris handling was less than anticipated originally and
additionally some of the budgeted work did not take place in fiscal 2012 as was originally
planned. All programs in the Health Department were below budget for the fiscal year with
the Home Health program having the largest savings due to lower than expected salary
and contractual labor costs. Expenditures for Social Services programs for foster care and
adoption were considerably lower than budget. The case load in these areas has
decreased significantly over the past three years due to a major effort by the department to
resolve these cases more quickly. Additionally salary and benefit costs were down from
the budgeted amounts.
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Revenues in the Governmental Funds were approximately $1.7 million below budget. Over
half of this amount was due to not receiving as much Federal money from FEMA for
Hurricane Irene expenses in fiscal 2012. Finalization of the disposal of the debris and
restoration of the collection site was delayed and as a result this revenue will be received in
fiscal 2013.  Approximately 79 percent of the total General fund balance, or $23,271,321,
is unassigned at June 30, 2012. This amount represents 24.8 percent of total General
Fund expenditures (including transfer outs). In 2011, unassigned General fund balance
was $22,190,181 approximately 82 percent of the total fund balance. There was an
appropriation of $416,953 of fund balance in the 2013 budget.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Craven County’s basic
financial statements. The County’s basic financial statements consist of three components; 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. The basic financial statements present two different views of the County through the
use of government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic
financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information to enhance the reader’s
understanding of the financial condition of Craven County.

Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Management's Basic
Discussion and Fimancial
Analysis Statements
I
| I | l
Government-wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial
Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the County’s financial
status, using the full-accrual basis of accounting, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities
of the individual parts of the County’s government. These statements provide more detail than
the government-wide statements. There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the
governmental fund statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund
statements; and 4) the fiduciary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the Notes to the Financial Statements.
The notes are essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and
fund financial statements because they explain in detail some of the data contained in those
statements.
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After the notes, supplemental information is provided to show details about the County’s non-
major governmental funds, all of which are added together in one column on the basic financial
statements. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this
part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad
overview of the County’s finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector
business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the
County’s financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the County’'s net assets and how they have
changed. Net assets are the difference between the County’s total assets and total liabilities.
Measuring net assets is one way to gauge the County’s financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities, 2)
business-type activities, and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most of the
County’s basic services such as public safety, education, human services, environmental
services, economic and physical development, and general administration. Property tax, sales
tax, and state and federal grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type
activities are those that the County charges customers to provide. For Craven County, only the
water utility is reported as a business activity.

The final category is component units. CarolinaEast Health System (formerly Craven Regional
Medical Center) is a public hospital operated by the CarolinaEast Health System authority. The
County Commissioners appoint the governing board of the Health System and own the property
and buildings on which the hospital is located. The facility is leased for $1 per year to the Health
System by the County. The Craven County Tourism Development Authority (TDA) and the
Coastal Carolina Regional Airport Authority (formerly Craven Regional Airport Authority) are
separate legal entities. The County is financially accountable for the TDA, as the TDA derives its
revenues through a special room occupancy tax authorized and revocable by the County
Commissioners. The Airport Authority governing board is appointed by the County
Commissioners and the County is responsible for financing any operating deficits of the Authority.
Although legally separate from the County, the Craven County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board
is a component unit of the County because the County is financially accountable for the Board by
appointing its members and because the Board is required to distribute its profits to the County.

The government-wide financial statements are on pages 28 and 29 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the County’s most significant
activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over the
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Craven County, like all
other governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect
compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General
Statutes or the County’s budget ordinance. All of the funds of Craven County can be divided into
three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.
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Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the County’s basic
services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily
be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available
for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using the accounting method
called modified accrual accounting. This method also has a current financial resources focus. As
a result, the governmental funds financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view
that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance
the County’s programs. The relationship between government activities (reported in the
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in
a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.

Craven County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General
Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of
the County, the management of the County, and the decisions of the Board about which services
to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the County to obtain funds from identified
sources to finance these current period activities.  The budgetary statement provided for the
General Fund demonstrates how well the County complied with the budget ordinance and
whether or not the County succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was
adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is
presented using the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document.
The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the board; 2) the final
budget as amended by the board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending
balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the final budget and the
actual resources and charges.

Proprietary Funds — Craven County has only two proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used
to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. Craven County uses an enterprise fund to account for its water utility
activity. This fund is the same as the separate activity shown in the business-type activities in the
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. Internal Service Funds are an
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the functions of the
County. The County uses an internal service fund to account for its risk management activity.
Because this operation benefits predominately governmental rather than business-type activities,
the internal service fund has been included within the governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds — Agency funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Craven County has three agency funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the financial statements start on page 41 of this report.

Other Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report includes certain required supplementary information concerning Craven County’s progress
in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to law enforcement personnel. Required
supplementary information can be found following the Financial Statements and Notes to the
Financial Statements of this report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's

financial condition. The assets of Craven County exceeded liabilities by $65,264,632 as of June
30, 2012. The County’s net assets increased by $3,050,964 for the fiscal year ended June 30,
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2012. By far, the largest category of net assets, totaling $54,808,617 or 84% of the total net
assets, is the County’s investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and
equipment); less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items.
Craven County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens, consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending. Although Craven County’s investment in its capital
assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt
must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities. An additional portion of Craven County’s net assets $9,058,929 (13.9%) represents
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. Most of this amount
is a result of North Carolina statutes requiring restriction of assets not readily converted into cash.
The remaining balance is unrestricted. At June 30, 2012, the unrestricted balance of $1,397,086
would be significantly larger were it not for the method used to finance public school and
community college (schools) debt in North Carolina. Under North Carolina law, the County is
responsible for providing capital funding for the schools. The County has chosen to meet its legal
obligation to provide the schools capital funding by using a mixture of County funds and debt.
The assets funded by the County, however, are owned and utilized by the schools. Since the
County, as the issuing government, acquires no capital assets, the County has incurred a liability

without a corresponding increase in assets.

Even though the debt issued has been issued to

finance capital outlay and construction for the schools, the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board has determined that it is not capital debt for the County since it is not financing assets
owned by the County. As a result, the school debt is reportable within the unrestricted category
of net assets rather than as part of the category invested in capital assets, net of related debt.
The unrestricted net assets balance is made up of the following:

School system debt

All other

Total unrestricted net assets

Craven County’s Net Assets

$ (47,188,550)
48,585,636
$ 1,397,086

Governmental Activities Business Type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Current and other assets ~ $52152,803  $53,270,029 $15,130,269 § 13,802,898 $67,283,072 $67,072,927
Capital assets, net 66,097,232 68,894,229 18,797,337 18,894,229 84,894,569 87,844,720
Total assets 118,250,035 122,164,258 33,927,606 32,753,389 152,177,641 154,917,647
Long-term 47,188,550 51,364,850 - - 47,188,550 51,364,850
liabilities/schools
Long-term liabilities/other 35,298,138 36,865,278 1,209,095 1,358,837 36,507,233 38,224,115
Other liabilities 2,795,995 2,716,178 421,231 398,836 3,217,226 3,115,014
Total liabilities 85,282,683 90,946,306 1,630,326 1,757,673 86,913,009 92,703,979
Net assets:
Invested in  capital
assets,
net of related debt 37,057,382 37,674,722 17,751,235 17,797,133 54,808,617 55,471,855
Restricted 9,058,929 8,300,518 - - 9,058,929 8,300,518
Unrestricted (deficit) (13,148,959)  (14,757,288) 14,546,045 13,198,583 1,397,086 (1,558,705)
Total net assets $32967,352 $31217.952 $32297280 $30995716 $65264632 $62213668

The impact on unrestricted net assets, caused by the inclusion of the school debt without the
corresponding assets, was partially offset by the following positive factors:
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e Continued diligence in the collection of property taxes by maintaining a collection
percentage of 97.92, the exact same percentage as the previous year but higher than the
statewide average of 97.19 percent for the previous year.

¢ General Fund actual expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures by $4.0 million.
This was due to steps taken to reduce expenditures by continuing the steps implemented
in the past year, including a soft hiring freeze, restricting travel and capital outlay. The
actions taken to control expenditures successfully offset revenues of $1.7 million below
budget and resulted in an addition to the General Fund Balance in the amount of $2.3
million.

Craven County Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business Type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $13,316,188 $13,557,969  $3,709,076  $3,652217 $17,025264 $17,210,186
Operating grants and 20,740,481 19,927 884 20,740,481 19,927,884
contributions
Capital grants and 1,831,861 3,418,463 1,831,861 3,418,463
contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes 46,550,189 47,482,900 46,550,189 47,482,900
Sales and use taxes 13,491,235 12,415,520 13,491,235 12,415,520
Other 2,364,115 3,231,571 202,269 186,408 2,566,384 3,417,979
Total revenues 98,294,069 100,034,307 3,911,345 3,838,625 102205414 103,872,932
Expenses:
General government 10,295,085 8,577,883 10,295,085 8,577,883
Public safety 16,897,985 16,218 231 16,897 985 16,218,231
Environmental protection 5,044,117 5,234,597 5,044 117 5,234,597
Economic and physical 3,372,531 3,820,355 3,372,531 3,820,355
development
Human services 31,482,626 31,736,112 31,482 626 31,736,112
Culture and recreation 2,287 587 2,357,440 2,287,587 2,357,440
Education 23781177 22,244,200 23,781,177 22 244 200
Interest on long term debt 3,488,561 3,772,400 3,488 561 3,772,400
Water and sewer districts 2,504,781 2,533,584 2,504,781 2,533,584
Total expenses 96,649,669 93,961,218 2,504,781 2,533,584 99,154 450 96,494,802
Increase in net assets before 1,644,400 6,073,089 1,406,564 1,305,041 3,050,964 7,378,130
transfers
Transfers 105,000 106,200 (105,000) (106,200) - -
Increase in net assets 1,749,400 6,179,289 1,301,564 1,198,841 3,050,964 7,378,130
Net assets, beginning of year 31,217,952 25,038,663 30,995,716 29,796,875 62,213,668 54,835,538
Net assets, end of year $32,967,352  $31,217,952  $32,297,280 $30,995,716 $65264,632 $62,213,668
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the County’s net assets by
$1,749,400. Changes of significance in the revenues and expenses were:

The County received less capital grants in fiscal 2012 than 2011 for housing programs
and the recreation’s park fund, as well as a decline in the lottery proceeds used for
school debt service due to the State retaining a portion of these funds.

Operating grants increased as a result of receiving $961,000 of reimbursements from
FEMA for Hurricane Irene damages. Additional reimbursements will come in fiscal 2013
as the closeout of the claim occurs.

Lower property tax revenues resulting from an increase in the allowance for uncollectible

accounts of $600,000 and over $300,000 of refunds to taxpayers of taxes paid in
previous years on property located onboard MCAS Cherry Point, which was determined
to be non-taxable, as well as a settlement of a valuation appeal by a large manufacturing
company in the County.

Sales tax rebounded in fiscal 2012 with an 8.7 percent increase due to an increase in
taxable sales. Taxable retail sales in the County increased from $816,041,254 to
$887,252,910.

Miscellaneous revenue declined from the prior year due to the settlement of the
convention center lawsuit in fiscal 2011 in the amount of $1.1 million.

General government expenses increased by $1.7 million in fiscal 2012 due to expending
approximately $1.4 million for Hurricane Irene related costs, mostly for debris
management.

Public safety expenses were up by approximately $700,000 due to an increase in funding
for the volunteer rescue squads and increased spending in the Emergency Telephone
Service Fund. The State legislature allowed half of the June 30, 2010 fund balance of
the E-911 fund to be used for any public safety purpose but it had to be spent by June
30, 2012. The County chose to fund the purchase of law enforcement vehicles out of this
fund in 2012 due to the delay in construction of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC).
The EOC was the initial project for this fund balance but the delay in the design and
bidding caused the County to switch the expenditure to vehicles which are normally
funded from the General Fund. The General Fund will in turn provide approximately
$400,000 of funds for the EOC project in 2013.

Education expenses were higher in 2012 due to spending approximately $1.5 million of
Qualified School Construction Bonds proceeds on various school projects during the
year. These projects are expected to be completed in early 2013.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities, the County’s water utility, increased Craven
County’s net assets by $1,301,564.

Total revenue increased as a result of a rate increase implemented in October 2011 to
provide funds for the water treatment plant construction project. The rate increase is
expected to provide the funds needed for additional operating expenses and higher debt
service when the plant goes on line in 2016.

Operating income as a percentage of revenue increased in 2012 to 36% compared to
34% in 2011. The higher percentage in the current year was due to slightly lower
operating expenses and depreciation. The water fund experienced less cost for repairs
of the system in 2012.

21



Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, Craven County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of Craven County’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information
is useful in assessing Craven County’s financing requirements. Specifically, unassigned fund
balance can be a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the
end of the fiscal year.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of Craven County. At the end of fiscal 2012,
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $23,271,321, an increase of $1,081,140, while
total fund balance increased by $2,257,572 to $29,431,668 or 8.3 percent. As a measure of the
General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total
fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned General fund balance represents 24.8
percent of total General Fund expenditures (including transfers out), while total fund balance
represents 31.4 percent of the total General Fund expenditures. The County has no formal fund
balance policy but has a goal of maintaining an available fund balance of 18 to 25 percent of
expenditures.

At June 30, 2012, the governmental funds of Craven County reported a combined fund balance of
$40,236,721, which represents a 1.6 percent decrease from last year. This decrease was
explained in the Financial Highlights section at the beginning of this analysis.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the County revised the budget on
several occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1)
amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance
once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts
from external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that
become necessary to maintain services.

Total amendments to the General Fund budget increased estimated revenues by $4.0 million
including the following:

e The budget for sales tax revenue was increased by $225,000 during the year due to
higher than anticipated receipts for the portion of the sales tax designated for school
capital needs which are recorded in the General Fund as revenue and transferred to the
Debt Service Fund to pay school debt.

e Intergovernmental revenues increased by approximately $2.9 million from the original
budget and consisted of the following items: energy assistance grants received from the
State by DSS after the original budget was adopted totaled $739,000 while the budget for
subsidized daycare assistance declined by $184,000; CARTS accounted for $98,000
increase in the budget due to additional funds becoming available for Craven as well as
Pamlico and Jones counties which are served by Craven’s transportation system; the
Criminal Justice Partnership Program grant of $103,000 was not in the original budget
due to the State making a late decision about the future of the program; during the year a
grant of $100,000 was received from the North Carolina Department of Commerce for the
purpose of protecting the MCAS Cherry Point base from reductions in funding and
employment; and the largest addition to the intergovernmental revenue category was due
to budgeting $1,850,000 of funds to be received from FEMA for Hurricane Irene which hit
the county in August of 2011. In all of these instances expenditures were increased by
the same amount.
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« Charges for services budgeted amounts increased by $1.1 million during the year. Fees
collected by the Health Department and Medicaid Maximization funds received were
increased by $767,000 during the year to reflect increased demand for services and were
offset by increased expenditures.

Amendments to the budget for approximately $428,000 were made during the year as
appropriations of fund balance of the General Fund and included: $298,000 for property tax
refunds to taxpayers on MCAS Cherry Point and BSH Appliances (mentioned earlier); $39,000
transfer was budgeted from fund balance to move half of the dental program profits from 2011 to
the County Reserve Fund for anticipated improvements to the dental trailer in the future; $30,000
was budgeted from the fund balance for the County’s celebration to commemorate the 300"
anniversary of the founding of the County; $20,000 was appropriated for the defense of MCAS
Cherry Point to guard against reductions in the employment and capabilities of the base; and
$30,000 of fund balance from the Sheriff's seized property fund for expenditures relating to drug
control.

Expenditure appropriations in the final budget were increased by approximately $4.2 million from
the original budget. The increases in expenditures were a result of the amendments to revenues
discussed above in the preceding paragraph.

Net transfer outs were increased in the budget by approximately $500,000 and related to the
transfer of $341,000 from the Sheriff Department to the EOC Renovation Fund to reimburse that
fund for the use of the E-911 fund balance that was to be used for the EOC (mentioned earlier).
Additionally there was a transfer of $225,000 to the Debt Service Fund for the increased sales tax
revenue dedicated to the school capital needs (also mentioned earlier).

Proprietary Funds. Craven County’s proprietary funds statements (water utility) provide the
same type of information found in the government-wide statements but in more detail.
Unrestricted net assets of the Water Fund increased during the fiscal year by $1.3 million to $14.5
million. This was a result of an increase in operating income from $1.3 million last year to $1.4 in
2012 and a reduction in the investment in capital assets, net of related debt. Capital assets
continued to be depreciated and there were few additions to the capital assets in 2011. A rate
increase was implemented in October 2011 in anticipation of higher costs when the new
treatment plant comes on line in 2016. Debt service was lower due to normal scheduled
payments being made. Factors concerning the finance of this fund have already been addressed
in the discussion of Craven County’s business-type activities.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. Craven County’s capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities
as of June 30, 2012, totaled approximately $84,895,000 (net of accumulated depreciation).
These assets include buildings, land, machinery and equipment, park facilities, vehicles, and
water production and distribution infrastructure.

Major capital asset transactions totaling approximately $3 million during the year included:
e Purchase new vehicles for the Sheriff department and CARTS
¢ Replacement of chiller at the Human Services Complex
* Replacement of HVAC control system at the convention center
e Completion of the renovation project of the former St. Luke’s Hospital building to house
the Probation and Child Support offices
Continuation of the project for additional water sources (Castle Hayne aquifer project)
e Acquisition of new hardware and software by the information technology department and
the health department
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Craven County’s Capital Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2012 201 2012 2011 2012

2011

Land $9,974,192  $9,958,882 $489,678 $210,428 $10,463,870 $10,169,310

Buildings 67,064,159 68,185,040 563,318 563,318 67,627,477 68,748,358
Improvements 9,918,254 9,095,848  29,708172 29,708,174 39,626,426 38,804,022

Machinery and equipment 4,371,596 4,754,663 196,402 227,138 4 567,998
Vehicles 5,449,392 5,413,686 182,696 181,558 5,632,088
Construction in progress 568,645 801,613 801,865 349,120 1,370,510

4,081,801
5,595,244
1,150,733

Total 97,346,238 98,209,732 31,942,131 31,239,736 129,288,369 129,449,468

Less accumulated 31,249,006 29315503 13,144,794 12,289,245 44393800 41,604,748
depreciation

Total net of depreciation $66,097,232  $68,894,229 $18,797,337 $18,950,491  $84,894,569 $87,844,720

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in Note 3 of the Basic
Financial Statements.

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2012, Craven County had total bonded general obligation debt
outstanding of $26,695,000. Of this amount, $26,600,000 is debt backed by the full faith and
credit of the County. Included in this amount is $300,000 of general obligation debt issued by the
County on behalf of the Coastal Carolina Regional Airport Authority, a discretely presented
component unit of the County, and shown as debt belonging to the Airport Authority on their
financial statements. (This debt is not shown in the table below). Of the total bonded general
obligation debt, $95,000 is debt backed by the full faith and credit of two water and sewer
districts, blended component units of the County.

Craven County’s Outstanding Debt

Governmental Activities Business Type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

G. O. bonds $26,300,000  $28,990,000 $95,000 $145000 $26,395,000  $29,135,
Installment debt 48,883,550 52,479,850 1,041,485 1,148,224 49,925,035 53,628,

Capital lease 62,415 - - - 62,415

000
074

Total long debt ~ $75,245,965  $81,469,850 $1,136485 $1,293224  $76,382450  $82,763,

074

Craven County’s total bonded and installment debt decreased by $6,380,623 (7.7 percent) during
the past fiscal year. This decrease was the result of making regularly scheduled payments. New
debt included $62,415 of capitalized lease for computer equipment. The lease is for three years
with an imputed interest rate of 3.58%.

The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government
can issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that
government’s boundaries. The balance remaining of the legal debt margin for Craven County is
$694,580,000.

Additional information regarding Craven County’s long-term debt can be found in Note 4 of this
audited financial report.
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates
The following key economic indicators reflect current economic conditions of the County:

» The County’s annual average unemployment rate for calendar year 2011 was 11.0
percent (same as the revised calendar 2010) in the County, compared with a State rate
of 10.5 percent. The rate declined to 9.9% at the end of August, 2012, a significant and
encouraging improvement.

e Per capita income for the years 2000-2010 for Craven County shows an average annual
growth rate of 3.0 percent, while the average annual growth rate for the State, during the
same period, was 2.3 percent and 2.8 percent for the nation. The County’s per capita
income increased 1.6 percent in calendar 2010 (the latest year information is available)
while the State increased by 2.5 percent and the nation increased by 2.8 percent. The
County’s per capita income level is 102 percent of the state average and 90 percent of
the national average.

¢ Total personal income for Craven County in 2010 was $3.7 billion, ranking 23" in the
State and accounting for 1.1 percent of the State total. The change for 2010 was an
increase of 3.5 percent over 2009. The ten year compounded annual growth rate for the
County for 2000-2010 was 4.3 percent, 4.0 percent for the State and 3.7 percent for the
nation.

 The number of building inspections performed by the County Inspections Department in
fiscal 2012 was almost exactly what the count was in 2011 and still only 73 percent of
what they were in 2007, the peak of the housing boom. Housing market conditions
continue to be adversely affected by the lack of credit and uncertainty with the economy
although not to the extent that many areas of the country, or even the state, have
experienced. Housing prices have fallen as demand continues to be weak. The estimate
for property values used for ad valorem taxes in the 2012 budget increased only slightly
and actual values for 2012 came in right on the estimate of $9.6 billion.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013

Governmental Activities: The County has approved a $94.0 million General Fund budget for
fiscal year 2013. This is up $1.0 million from the budget originally adopted for fiscal 2012 but is
$3.8 million less than the final budget for 2012. Estimates of property values for fiscal 2013 are
$9.67 billion, a small increase from the 2012 actual valuation of $9.62 billion. The reasons for this
small increase are the expected continuing decline in motor vehicle values which have steadily
declined for four years and the slow- down in new construction. The 2013 budget was adopted
with a tax rate of $.47 per $100 of property valuation, a slight reduction from the rate of $.4728
per $100 for 2012. Fund balance in the amount of $416,953 was appropriated to balance the
budget.
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The budget for fiscal 2013 included six new positions. An additional appraiser was added in the
Tax Department due to the shortening of the revaluation process from eight years to six years.
The last revaluation was January 1, 2010 and the next will be in 2016 rather than 2018. An
additional maintenance technician was added as well as an additional telecommunicator in the E-
911 department. A deputy was added in the Electronic Offender Monitoring Program of the
Sheriff department. This program which uses ankle bracelets to get minor offenders out of jall
has proven successful in reducing costs in the jail and is being expanded in 2013. A food and
beverage supervisor was added at the convention center due to taking over the sale of alcoholic
beverages. Formerly this was handled by the preferred caterer chosen by the client. This
change will increase the revenue of the convention center overall. A purchasing agent was
added in the Finance department. Craven County has never had a centralized purchasing
department but it was felt that the position should more than pay for itself with the savings
generated by consolidating purchasing efforts. Twelve positions were abolished in the budget,
most of which were Social Services employees and were eliminated due to funding cuts by the
Federal government in the TANF program. The County did provide a three percent increase for
all full time employees. This was the first “cost of living” increase given to County employees in
four years.

Capital outlay has been restricted to items which are absolutely necessary and cannot be
delayed. Vacant positions are filled only for absolutely essential heeds. Funding for the public
libraries increased slightly in the budget and public schools funding increased by approximately
$650,000, most of which will fund an additional $100 teacher supplement bringing the total local
supplement to $2100 per eligible teacher. Funding for the Community College increased by
$90,000 to provide for additional capital needs.

In order to balance their own budget, the State, again in 2013, negatively impacted counties
budgets. Once again county revenue sources with the most significant cuts were the ADM funds
(used for school debt service) and the lottery funding, also used for school debt service. The
County had sufficient funds on hand to pay the debt service in 2012 from the historic funding
sources which include the dedicated sales tax for schools, lottery proceeds and ADM funds.
However, beginning in 2013 the County has to supplement these sources with general county
revenues to make required debt payments. The County budget included an appropriation of
$880,000 to make up the shortfall caused by these reductions implemented by the State. When
this debt was incurred it was projected that the historic revenue sources would prevent the
County from having to use general County revenues to meet debt service requirements. This
would have been the case had the State not taken the County funds.

Business-type Activities: There was no rate change in the fiscal 2013 budget. As previously
mentioned, a rate increase was implemented October 1, 2011 which was designed to provide
funds needed for the new water treatment plant project debt service and operating costs. Even
with the rate increase the average County customer pays considerably less than customers of
surrounding systems. Work will continue on the alternate water supply project in fiscal 2013.
Now that the land required for the project has been acquired, the engineer will begin work on final
design and obtaining necessary permits for the project. It is estimated that this phase of the
project will take approximately fifteen months.

Requests for Information
This report is designed to provide an overview of the County’s finances for those with an interest
in this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for

additional information should be directed to the Finance Officer, Craven County, 406 Craven
Street, New Bern, North Carolina, 28560.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Restricted short-term investments
Accounts receivables (net)
Taxes receivables (net)
Accrued interest receivable
Due from other government
Inventories
Prepaid items
Deferred charges - issuance costs
Deferred charges - refunding
Long-term cash and investments
Other assets
Capital assets:

Land and construction in progress

Other capital assets, net of depreciation/amortization

Total capital assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest payable
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Stabilization by State statute
Debt service-education
Public safety
Economic and physical development
Other purposes
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net assets

Primary Government

Component Units

Tourism Coastal Carolina Craven

Governmental Business-type Development Regional Airport  CarolinaEast County ABC
Activities Activities Total Authority Authority Health System Board

$ 26,651,455 $ 12,236,722 $ 38,888,177 $ 293,344 % 2,195,998 $ 12,644,637 $ 1,777,946

13,570,046 2,000,000 15,570,046 - - 45,922,270 539,504
573,110 - 573,110 - - - -
2,526,764 798,547 3,325,311 - 431,443 41,457,131 -
4,997,914 - 4,997,914 - - - -
668,874 - 668,874 - - - -
- 95,000 95,000 - - - -

- - - - - 6,751,213 794,333

2,872 - 2,872 - - 3,247,464 20,273
966,952 - 966,952 - - - -
2,194,816 - 2,194,816 - - - -

- - - - - 164,532,876 -

- - - - - 268,285 -
10,542,837 1,291,543 11,834,380 - 12,247,039 9,109,376 189,501
55,554,395 17,505,794 73,060,189 - 12,056,579 111,122,501 983,744
66,097,232 18,797,337 84,894,569 - 24,303,618 120,231,877 1,173,245

118,250,035 33,927,606 152,177,641 293,344 26,931,059 395,055,753 4,305,301
1,354,205 89,068 1,443,273 - 34,448 32,029,277 1,453,647
924,756 16,244 941,000 - 48,607 15,509,235 19,914
198,540 311,302 509,842 - - - -
318,494 4,617 323,111 - 8,443 150,358 -
7,716,804 156,015 7,872,819 - 553,596 751,290 -
74,769,884 1,053,080 75,822,964 - 532,654 1,545,090 -
85,282,683 1,630,326 86,913,009 - 1,177,748 49,985,250 1,473,561
37,057,382 17,751,235 54,808,617 - 23,240,180 117,935,497 1,173,245
5,947,970 - 5,947,970 - - - -
1,318,370 - 1,318,370 - - - -
1,644,349 - 1,644,349 - - - -
111,018 - 111,018 - - - -
37,222 - 37,222 - - - 252,034
(13,148,959) 14,546,045 1,397,086 293,344 2,513,131 227,135,006 1,406,461
$ 32,967,352 $ 32,297,280 $ 65,264,632 $ 293,344 % 25,753,311 $ 345070503 $ 2,831,740

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Component Units

Operating Tourism Craven County
Charges for Grants and Capital Grants and Governmental Business-type Development  Regional Airport CarolinaEast Craven County
Activities Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Authority Authority Health System ABC Board
Primary government:
Govermnmental:
General government $ 10,295,085 $ 1,633,609 § 2238620 $ - $ (6,422,856) § - $ (6,422,856)
Public safety 16,897,985 2,250,857 845,729 4,472 (13,796,927) - (13,796,927)
Social Services 23,091,103 746,897 15,728,496 117,377 (6,498,333) - (6,498,333)
Economic and physical development 3,372,531 1,094,565 32,998 580,782 (1,664,186) - (1,664,186)
Environmental protection 5,044,117 2,509,331 143,389 - (2,391,397) - (2,381,397)
Health 8,391,523 5,005,119 1,701,749 - (1,684,655) - (1,684,655)
Cultural and recreation 2,287,587 75,810 49,500 - (2,162,277) - (2,162,277)
Education 23,781,177 - - 1,129,230 (22,651,947) - (22,651.947)
Interest on long-term debt 3,488,561 - - - (3,488,561) - (3,488,561)
Total governmental activities 96,649,669 13,316,188 20,740,481 1,831,861 (60,761,139) - (60,761,139)
Business-type:
Water 2,504,781 3,709,076 - - - 1,204,295 1,204,295
Total business-type activities 2,504,781 3,709,076 - - - 1,204,295 1,204,295
Total primary government $ 99154450 § 17025264 $ 20740481 $§ 1,831,861 (60,761,139) 1,204,295 (59,556,844)
Component units:
Tourism Development Authority $ 436,844 $ 535210 $ - $ - $ 98,366 - $ - $ -
Airport Authority 2,315,467 2,140,227 418,248 1,361,778 - 1,594,786 - -
Health System 265,810,985 272,947,938 - - - - 7,136,953 -
ABC Board 6,948,322 6,662,891 - - - - - (395,431)
Total component units $ 275511618 § 282176266 8 418248 § 1,351,778 98,366 1,594,786 7,136,953 (395,431)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 46,550,189 - 46,550,189 - - - -
Local option sales tax 13,491,235 - 13,491,235 - - - -
Other taxes 1,003,991 - 1,003,991 - - - -
Investment earninas, unrestricted 231,554 67,396 298,950 854 9,981 (2.5629,252) 3,198
Miscellaneous, unrestricted 1,128,570 134,873 1,263,443 4,153 - 3,138,698 -
Transfers 105,000 (105,000) - - - - -
Total general revenues and transfers 62,510,539 97,269 62,607,808 5,007 9,981 609,446 3,193
Change in net assets 1,749,400 1,301,564 3,050,964 103,373 1,604,767 7,746,399 (392,238)
Net assets-beginning 31,217,952 30,995,716 62,213,668 189,971 24,148,544 337,324,104 3,223,978
Net assets-ending $ 32,967,352 $ 32297280 $ 65264632 _$ 293344 $ 25753311 $ 345070503 § 2,831,740

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term investments

Taxes receivable

Accounts receivable

Due from other funds

Restricted short-term investments
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Due to other funds
Deferred/Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Restricted
Stabilization by state statute
Public safety
Economic and physical development
Register of deeds
Education, schools
Committed:
Capital projects
Assigned:
Subsequent years expenditures
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

County Reserve Nonmajor Total
Capital Projects Governmental Governmental

General Fund Funds Funds
$ 12,951,940 $ 7,716,701  §$ 1,670,895 22,339,536
13,570,046 - - 13,570,046
4,959,845 - 38,069 4,997,914
2,200,423 - 326,341 2,526,764
- - 802,960 802,960
- - 573,110 573,110
$ 33,682,254 § 7,716,701 $ 3,411,375 44,810,330
$ 785691 $ - $ 284,953 1,070,644
924,756 - - 924,756
802,960 - - 802,960
1,737,179 - 38,070 1,775,249
4,250,586 - 323,023 4,573,609
5,621,630 - 326,340 5,947,970
84,542 - 1,559,807 1,644,349
- - 111,018 111,018
37,222 - - 37,222
- - 1,318,370 1,318,370
- 7,716,701 (30,193) 7,686,508
416,953 - - 416,953
23,271,321 - (196,990) 23,074,331
29,431,668 7,716,701 3,088,352 40,236,721
$ 33682254 § 7,716,701 % 3,411,375 44,810,330

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statemer
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental

Funds to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2012

Amounts reported for the governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Fund balance at June 30, 2012 - total governmental funds (page 30) $ 40,236,721

Capital assets used in governmental activities that are not current financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds. 66,097,232

Other assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and
therefore are not recognized in the funds. 3,830,643

Internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of insurance
to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are
included governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 4,031,229

Liabilities for earned but deferred revenues in the fund. 1,576,709

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued interest payable, are not
due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (82,805,182)

Net assets of governmental activities at June 30, 2012 (page 28) $ 32,967,352

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES
Taxes:

Property

Sales

Tourism Room
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General government
Public safety
Environmental protection
Economic and physical development
Health
Social services
Culture and recreation
Education

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt issued
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning

Ending

County Reserve Nonmajor Total
Capital Projects Governmental Governmental

General Fund Funds Funds
45452939 §$ - $ 1,803,849 47,256,788
13,010,116 - 481,119 13,491,235
- - 1,003,991 1,003,991
20,553,825 - 2,268,517 22,822,342
13,562,444 - - 13,562,444
159,346 40,410 13,074 212,830
1,535,915 - - 1,535,915
94,274,585 40,410 5,570,550 99,885,545
9,866,620 - - 9,866,620
12,459,966 - 2,915,168 15,375,134
5,005,287 - - 5,005,287
2,500,458 - 940,005 3,440,463
8,405,341 - - 8,405,341
23,000,499 - - 23,000,499
2,120,750 - 30,193 2,150,943
22,275,514 - 1,505,663 23,781,177
2,150,664 - 4,160,550 6,311,214
1,481,729 - 1,954,451 3,436,180
89,266,828 - 11,506,030 100,772,858
5,007,757 40,410 (5.935,480) (887,313)
87,329 - - 87,329
1,721,264 202,387 4,629,592 6,553,243
(4,558,778) (982,944) (849,117) (6,390,839)
(2,750,185) (780,557) 3,780,475 249,733
2,257,572 (740,147) (2,155,005) (637,580)
27,174,096 8,456,848 5,243,357 40,874,301
29,431,668 § 7,716,701 § 3,088,352 40,236,721

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Amounts reported for the governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 32)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current
period.

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, retirements, and donations) is to decrease net
assets.

Reduction of revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provide current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal
of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities. This amount is the net effect of those differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of risk
management to individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities
of the internal service fund is reported with governmental activities.

Change in net assets of governmental activities (page 29)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE, BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Page 1 of 3}

Variance With

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property $ 45210596 $ 45210596 $ 45452939 § 242,343
Sales 12,521,025 12,746,025 13,010,116 264,091
Intergovernmental 19,210,236 22,131,477 20,553,825 (1,577,652)
Charges for services 13,063,121 14,189,366 13,562,444 (626,922)
Interest 226,000 226,000 159,346 (66,654)
Miscellaneous 1,259,117 1,425,779 1535915 110,136
Total revenues 91,490,095 95,929,243 94,274,585 (1,654,658)
EXPENDITURES
General government:
Commissioners 489,569 508,043 506,537 1,506
Administration 601,069 467,797 443 945 23,852
Human resources 375,729 379,616 353,777 25,839
Information technology 969,311 1,038,540 1,035,005 3,535
Finance 757,382 762,825 752,189 10,636
Elections 364,141 365,709 333,678 32,031
Tax assessor 862,368 851,504 841,513 9,991
Tax collections 550,286 856,268 849,362 6,906
Register of deeds 653,703 660,501 654,780 5,721
Public buildings 334,423 406,899 383,280 23,619
Housekeeping 254 488 253,643 245,082 8,561
Court facilities 390,682 325,113 256,354 68,759
GIS/Mapping 345,965 346,272 339,429 6,843
Maintenance 553,128 556,023 551,520 4,503
Non-departmental 1,076,527 3,065,814 2,320,169 745,645
Total general government 8,578,771 10,844 567 9,866,620 977,947
Public safety:
Animal control 360,284 358,084 341,642 16,442
Medical examiner 69,000 69,000 51,600 17,400
Sheriff 5,285,191 5,139,357 5,116,803 22,554
Criminal Justice Partnership Program - 102,619 54,404 48,215
Jail 3,660,919 3,627,647 3,518,151 109,496
Fire marshal/ Emergency management 826,618 834,787 818,383 16,404
Inspections 459,413 473,475 472,856 619
Other - Professional Services - 15,000 7,500 7,500
Volunteer rescue squads 2,173,238 2,191,980 2,078,627 113,353
Total public safety 12,834,663 12,811,949 12,459,966 351,983
Continued
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE, BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Page 2 of 3) Variance With
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Environmental protection:
Solid waste $ 3,658,443 ) 3,662,448 § 3,541,726  § 120,722
Environmental health 1,082,022 1,112,503 1,068,018 44 485
Soil conservation 124,744 126,994 123,992 3,002
Cooperative extension 287,680 296,080 271,551 24 529
Total environmental protection 5,152,889 5,198,025 5,005,287 192,738
Economic and physical development:
Planning 582,611 581,969 578,486 3,483
Economic Development Commission 351,763 414,761 357,175 57,586
Convention Center 1,345,665 1,541,092 1,446,706 94,386
Other-Legal - 120,000 118,091 1,909
Total economic and physical development 2,280,039 2,657,822 2,500,458 157,364
Health:
Dental 386,505 386,505 321,180 65,325
Maternity 1,460,018 1,445,099 1,352,205 92,894
Child health 1,200,098 1,331,081 ‘ 1,208,705 122,376
Risk Reduction 301,059 185,418 171,881 13,537
wiC 595,455 638,716 583,201 55515
Adult Health Services 22,200 213,585 169,478 44 107
Communicable Disease 150,224 154,074 134,826 19,248
Bio-Terrorism 56,582 52,274 52,241 33
Family planning 756,985 823,483 772,085 51,398
Home health 2,140,885 2,237,882 1,966,895 270,987
Mental health 276,827 279,027 277,866 1,161
Other - unclassified 1,431,070 1,444,831 1,394,778 50,053
Total health 8,777,908 9,191,975 8,405,341 786,634

Social services:

Transportation 1,636,891 1,837,198 1,587,868 249,330
Administration 2,392,027 2,459,224 2,313,987 145,237
Employment assistance 3,288,775 3,236,009 3,094,688 141,321
Adult/child services 1,335,012 1,353,219 1,269,725 83,494
Veterans services 138,833 140,367 139,323 1,044
Senior services 487,769 516,357 489,355 27,002
Public assistance payments 6,307,049 6,895,058 6,768,407 126,651
TANF 6,204,305 6,330,336 5,782,449 547,887
Child support enforcement 1,302,007 1,302,007 1,138,250 163,757
Other - unclassified 329,613 420,358 416,447 3,911

Total social services 23,422,281 24,490,133 23,000,499 1,489,634

Continued
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE, BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Page 3 of 3)

Variance With

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Culture and recreation
Recreation 814,074 $ 814857 $ 802,254 12,603
Libraries 1,218,323 1,218,323 1,218,323 -
Special appropriation 137,212 137,212 100,173 37,039
Total culture and recreation 2,169,609 2,170,392 2,120,750 49,642
Education, schools
Public schools - current expenditures 17,887,352 17,887,352 17,870,304 17,048
Public schools - fines and forfeitures 50,000 50,000 40,080 9,920
Public schools - capital outlay 700,000 700,000 700,000 -
Community college 3,665,130 3,665,130 3,665,130 -
Total education 22,302,482 22,302,482 22275514 26,968
Debt service:
Principal 2,125,750 2,150,664 2,150,664 -
Interest 1,481,729 1,481,729 1,481,729 -
Total debt service 3,607,479 3,632,393 3,632,393 -
Total expenditures 89,126,121 93,299,738 89,266,828 4,032,910
Excess of revenues over expenditures 2,363,974 2,629,505 5,007,757 2,378,252
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt issued - 87,329 87,329 -
Transfers in 1,513,860 1,721,264 1,721,264
Transfers out (3,935,947) (4,655,894) (4,558,778) 97,116
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,422,087) (2,847,301) (2,750,185) 97,116
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other financing
sources (uses) (58,113) (217,796) 2,257,572 2,475,368
Appropriated fund balance 58,113 217,796 - (217,796)
Net change in fund balance - $ - 2,257,572 2,257,572
FUND BALANCE
Beginning 27,174,096
Ending $ 29,431,668

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2012

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts
Capital lease receivable-current
Due from other government-current
Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Due from other government-noncurrent
Capital lease receivable-noncurrent
Capital assets:
Land
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation)
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued interest payable
Customer deposits payable

Compensated absences liability - current

Instaliment notes payable-current

General obligation bonds payable-current

Obligations under capital lease-current
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences liability
Other postemployment benefit liability
Installment notes payable
General obligation bonds payable
Obligations under capital lease
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Business-type Activities -

Enterprise Funds Governmental
Northwest Activities -
Water Craven Water and Aggregate Internal
Fund Sewer District  Nonmajor Funds Eliminations Total Service Fund
$12,236,722 $ - $ - $ - $12,236,722  $4,311,918
2,000,000 2,000,000
798,547 oo - - 798,547 2,872
- 84,731 - (84,731) - -
- - 50,000 - 50,000 -
15,035,269 84,731 50,000 (84,731) 15,085,269 4,314,790
- - 45,000 - 45,000 -
- 961,371 - (961,371) - -
489,681 - - - 489,681 -
29,708,172 - - - 29,708,172 -
563,318 - - - 563,318 -
379,099 - - - 379,099 -
801,862 - - - 801,862 -
(13,144,795) - - - (13,144,795) -
18,797,337 - - - 18,797,337 -
18,797,337 961,371 45,000 (961,371) 18,842,337 -
33,832,606 1,046,102 95,000 (1,046,102) 33,927,606 4,314,790
89,068 - - - 89,068 283,561
16,244 - - - 16,244 -
- 4,617 - - 4,617 -
311,302 - - - 311,302 -
25,901 25,901
- 80,114 - - 80,114 -
- - 50,000 - 50,000 -
111,928 - - (111,928) - -
554,443 84,731 50,000 (111,928) 577,246 283,561
15,594 - - - 15,594
31,115 - - - 31,115 -
- 961,371 - - 961,371 -
- - 45,000 - 45,000 -
934,174 - - (934,174) - -
980,883 961,371 45,000 (934,174) 1,053,080 -
1,535,326 1,046,102 95,000 (1,046,102) 1,630,326 283,561
17,751,235 - - - 17,751,235 -
14,546,045 - - - 14,546,045 4,031,229
$32,297,280 § - $ - $ - $32,297,280  $4,031,229

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of services

Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

Operating income

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income
Interest expense

Total net nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out
Total transfers in (out)
Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

Business-type Activities -

Enterprise Funds Governmental
Northwest Aggregate Activities -
Water Craven Water and Nonmajor Internal
Fund Sewer District Funds Total Service Fund
$ 3,709076 $ - $ - $ 3709076 $ -
134,873 - - 134,873  Actual
3,843,949 - - 3,843,949 -
1,569,821 - - 1,569,821 4,475,901
904,719 - - 904,719 -
2,474,540 - - 2,474,540 4,475,901
1,369,409 - - 1,369,409 (4,475,901)
67,396 - - 67,396 517,285
- (29,480) (761) (30,241) -
67,396 (29,480) (761) 37,155 517,285
1,436,805 (29,480) (761) 1,406,564 (3,958,616)
18,000 29,480 761 48,241 -
(153,241) - - (153,241) (57,404)
(135,241) 29,480 761 (105,000) (57,404)
1,301,564 - - 1,301,564 (4,016,020)
30,995,716 - - 30,995,716 3,552,624
$ 32,297,280 § - $ - $ 32,297,280 $ (463,396)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Business-type Activities -

Enterprise Funds Govemmental
Northwest Activities -
Water Craven Water and Aggregate Internal
Fund Sewer District Nonmajor Funds Total Service Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 4024853 § - $ - $ 4024853 § (2,330)
Payments to customers and suppliers (867,231) - - (867,231) (4,020,183)
Payments to employees (672,681) - - (672,681) -
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,484,941 - - 2,484,941 (4,022,513)
CASH FL.OWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition & construction of capital assets (751,563) - - (751,563) -
Repayment of instaliment notes and bonds - (80,114) (26,625) (106,739) -
Payments on obligations under capital lease payable (106,739) - - (106,739) -
Proceeds from investment in direct finance leasing - 80,114 26,625 106,739 -
Interest paid (29,600) - - (29,600) -
Net cash used in capital
and related financing activities (887,902) - - (887,802) -
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers out (105,000) - - (105,000) (57,404)
Net cash used in noncapital
financing activities (105,000) - - (105,000) (57,404)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on cash and investments 67,396 - - 67,396 517,285
Net cash provided by investing activities 67,396 - - 67,396 517,285
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,559,435 - - 1,559,435 (3,562,632)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning 10,677,287 - - 10,677,287 3,897,210
Ending $ 12,236,722 $ - $ - $ 12,236,722 § 334,578

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Operating income $ 1369409 § - $ - $ 1369409 $(4475901)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 904,719 - - 904,719 -
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 180,904 - - 180,904 (2,330)
Accounts payable 33,042 - - 33,042 (61,567)
Customer deposits payable (3,133) - - (3,133) -
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2484941 § - $ - $ 2,484,941 $(4,539,798)

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of installment notes and bonds
by other govemments $ - $ - $ 50,000 $ 50,000 § -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2012

All Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 77,619
Total assets 3 77,619
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities $ 77,619
Total liabilities $ 77,619

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of operations:

Craven County, which is governed by a seven-member board of commissioners, is one of the 100
counties established in North Carolina under General Statute 153A-10. The County is located near the
coast in eastern North Carolina, with its seat of government in the City of New Bern. The County is
responsible for providing a full range of governmental services, including police and fire protection to
residents in unincorporated areas of the County, health and social services, recreational programs,
ambulance services, recycling operations, and operational and capital funding support for the public
school systems.

Reporting entity:

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial
statements present the County (primary government) and its component units, legally-separate entities
for which the County is financially accountable. The four discretely presented component units presented
below are reported in separate columns in the County’s government-wide financial statements in order to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the County.

Craven County Tourism Development Authority. The Craven County Tourism Development Authority
(“Tourism Development Authority”) is governed by members appointed by the County Commissioners, the
New Bern Board of Aldermen, the Havelock Board of Commissioners, and non-profit agencies. The
County is financially accountable for the Tourism Development Authority, as the Tourism Development
Authority derives its revenues through a special room occupancy tax authorized and revocable by the
County Commissioners. The Tourism Development Authority does not issue separate financial
statements.

Coastal Carolina Regional Airport Authority. The Coastal Carolina Regional Airport Authority (“Airport
Authority”) was established by a joint agreement between the City of New Bern and the County pursuant
to state statute. The governing board is selected by the County Commissioners and the County is
responsible for financing any operating deficits of the Airport. The County must approve issuance of any
revenue bonds. The Airport Authority does not issue separate financial statements.

CarolinaEast Health System. The Craven County Commissioners established the CarolinaEast Health
System (“Health System”) to provide medical services to County residents. The Commissioners select the
Health System’s governing board. In addition, Craven County leases land and improvements to The
Health System for $1 per year “in perpetuity”, and therefore does not record these assets in the County’s
financial statements. The Health System’s financial statements are presented as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2011 as if it were a proprietary fund. Complete financial statements for the Health
System may be obtained at 2000 Neuse Boulevard, New Bern, NC 28561.

Craven County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board. The Craven County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board
(“ABC Board”) is governed by a board appointed by the County Commissioners. The ABC Board is
required by State statute to distribute surpluses to the General Fund of the County. The ABC Board’s
financial statements are presented as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012 as if it were a proprietary
fund. Complete financial statements for the ABC Board may be obtained at 3493 Martin Drive, New Bern,
NC 28561.
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Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Blended component units are separate legal entities whose operations are so intertwined with Craven
County that they are, in substance, the same as Craven County. The County’s blended component units
are the following water and sewer districts, which have been established to provide water and sewer
services to the residents of the respective districts:

Neuse River Water and Sewer District Northwest Craven Water and Sewer District
Township 6 Water and Sewer District Tuscarora Rhems Water and Sewer District
Pembroke Water and Sewer District East Craven Water and Sewer District

The County has entered into an agreement with each existing District, which will encompass additional
Districts as they are created, that transfers all assets, liabilities (excluding bonded indebtedness, loans,
and installment notes), operational rights, and responsibilities to Craven County. In consideration for this
agreement, the County has agreed to pay the Districts an amount equal to debt service costs for the
respective Districts for the duration of the respective bonds, loans, and notes.

The County maintains the Districts’ assets, provides water operations and makes payments on
outstanding debts on behalf of the respective Districts. Therefore, the County’s financial statements
reflect the assets and debts in the Craven County Water Fund. The Board of County Commissioners sits
as the Board of each District. No separate financial statements are issued by these Districts as they have
no operations, only certain outstanding debt that is paid on their behalf by Craven County pursuant to the
agreement noted above. The outstanding liabilities of the Districts are presented in individual statements
along with the other proprietary funds, and the balances within the District and the corresponding
balances in the Craven County Water fund are eliminated through internal balances.

The agreement terminates with each district at the time there is no outstanding debt. At this point the
County has the option to purchase for $1 all of the real and personal property owned by the districts.
There is no outstanding debt for Tuscarora Rhems Water and Sewer District or East Craven Water and
Sewer District. The County has exercised its option to purchase the real and personal property of these
two districts.

Craven County Finance Corporation:

Craven County Finance Corporation (CCFC) is a nonprofit public benefit corporation. The Corporation
was organized and shall be operated exclusively for the purpose of providing debt financing for the
County, to fulfill various statutory obligations involving, but not limited to, purchase and sale, construction
and/or lease of real estate and improvements, facilities, and equipment. County debt and debt payments
are made by the County’s governmental funds. CCFC is a blended component unit and does not issue
separate financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies:

The basic financial statements of Craven County, North Carolina (government) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States as applied to government
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the
government’s accounting policies are described below.
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Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government (the County) and its component units. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have
been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. Interfund services provided and used
are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. These statements distinguish between the
governmental and business-type activities of the County. Governmental activities generally are financed
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each function of the County’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of
activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services
offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues,
including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds,
including its fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category —
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is
on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and
investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. This is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for and reports all financial
resources not accounted for or reported in another fund.

County Reserve Capital Projects Fund. This capital projects fund is used to reserve funds and provide
financial resources for future capital projects.
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Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

The government reports the following major enterprise funds:

Water Fund. This is used to account for the operation of water services provided throughout Craven
County.

Northwest Craven Water and Sewer District. Established to provide water and sewer services to the
residents of this district.

The County reports the following other fund types:

Agency Funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of operating
results. Agency funds are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of others. The
County maintains the following agency funds: the Social Services Fund, which accounts for moneys
deposited with the Department of Social Services for the benefit of certain individuals; and the
Department of Motor Vehicle Interest, which accounts for the three percent interest on the first month of
delinquent motor vehicle taxes that the County is required to remit to the North Carolina Department of
Motor Vehicles and accounts for the five dollars of each fee collected by the register of deeds for
registering or filing a deed of trust or mortgage and remitted to the State Treasurer on a monthly basis;
and the Municipal Property Tax Fund, which account for registered motor vehicle and real property
taxes that are billed and collected by the County for various municipalities within the County.

Internal Service Fund. This fund is used to finance and account for the County’s health and dental
insurance and workers’ compensation program information.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the County are maintained during the
year using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide,
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus, except for the agency funds which have no measurement focus. The government-
wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the
County gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include
property taxes, grants, entitements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
County enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The County also recognizes as
operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the
water system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and
judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have
matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing
sources.

The County recognizes assets of non-exchange transactions in the period when the underlying
transaction occurs, when an enforceable legal claim has arisen, or when all eligibility requirements are
met. Revenues are recognized, on the modified accrual basis, when they are measurable and available.
Non-exchange transactions occur when one government provides (or receives) value to (from) another
party without receiving (or giving) equal or nearly equal value in return. State shared revenues, sales tax,
property taxes, federal grants funding federal mandates, and most donations are examples of non-
exchange transactions.

The County considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except for
property taxes. Ad valorem property taxes receivable are not accrued as a revenue because the amount
is not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are materially past due and are not considered
to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year. Also, as of January 1, 1993,
State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor
vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, Craven County is responsible for billing
and collecting the property taxes on all registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and
special tax districts in the County. For registered motor vehicles property taxes are due the first day of
the fourth month after the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in
which they become due. Therefore, taxes for vehicles registered from March 2011 through February
2012 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Uncollected taxes that were billed during this period
are shown as a receivable on these financial statements. The taxes for renewal vehicles registered
annually that have already been collected as of year-end are also reflected as deferred revenues at June
30, 2012 because they are intended to finance the County's operations during the 2012 fiscal year.

Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the County are recognized as
revenue. Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because
generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as
revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been
satisfied, subject to availability.
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Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of specific
cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus when program
expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the
program. It is the County’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs,
followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.

All governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the County follow FASB Statements
and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and
Accounting Research Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

In accordance with the North Carolina Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act, the County
follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial report:

1) The County Manager submits to the Board of Commissioners a proposed operating budget for the
fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operational budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

2) Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
3) The budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance by June 30 each year.

The Board of Commissioners may amend the budget ordinance at any time after its adoption as long as
the amended ordinance continues to meet the requirements of North Carolina’s “Local Government
Budget and Fiscal Control Act”. No amendment may change the property tax levy unless the Board of
Commissioners is so ordered by competent authority. During the year, several supplementary
appropriations to the original budget were necessary. Individual amendments to the ordinance were not
material in relation to the original appropriations, and all amendments were legally made. The budget
amounts shown in the basic financial statements include the original budget as adopted prior to July 1,
2011, and the budget as amended at June 30, 2012.

Under State statute, actual expenditures cannot exceed budgetary appropriations at the level at which the
budget ordinance is formally approved. The County’s budget ordinance authorizes expenditures by
department total (the legal level of control) for all funds, including the enterprise funds. All budgets,
including the enterprise funds’ budgets, are fixed in nature. For internal management purposes, the
budgets are detailed by line item within each department and entered into the accounting records.
Comparisons of actual expenditures to budget are made on an ongoing basis. All budgets are prepared
using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

The County Manager is authorized to transfer appropriations within a fund up to $20,000; however, the
governing board must approve any revisions that alter total expenditures of any fund or exceed $20,000.
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the General Fund, certain Special Revenue Funds (all fire
districts funds), the Debt Service Fund, and all Proprietary Funds. The budget for Capital Projects Funds,
and certain Special Revenue Funds (CDBG FY2009 Scattered Sites Fund), authorize activity for the life
of each individual project. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end, whereas all project
appropriations lapse at the end of the project.
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The budget, as authorized for the General Fund, includes certain receipts to be received for and
disbursed to, or on behalf of, other entities, or individuals, by the County as fiscal agent. For financial
reporting purposes, these agency receipts and disbursements are reclassified to a separate agency fund.

The budgets for the enterprise funds are prepared on a modified accrual basis of accounting which
excludes depreciation expense and recognizes purchases of capital assets as current expenditures. For
financial reporting purposes, the activity of the enterprise funds has been reported using the accrual basis
of accounting, which is in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. CarolinaEast Health System (proprietary discrete component unit) does not report budget
data in their financial statements.

Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity

Cash _and Investments. The County pools cash resources of all funds and invests these funds jointly,
including certain funds of the Airport Authority and the Tourism Development Authority, to facilitate
disbursement and investment activities and to maximize investment income. Each fund owns a pro rata
share of the cash and investments pool. Investment earnings of the pool are allocated to all funds based
on the individual fund’s average cash balances outstanding during the month.

For the purposes of the County’s proprietary fund types statement of cash flows, all highly liquid
investments outside of the pool with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased are
considered to be cash equivalents. For amounts in the County’s cash and investment pool, since cash
pools have the general characteristics of demand deposit accounts in that the individual funds may
deposit additional cash at any time and withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty, such
cash and investments are considered to be cash.

The County and all component units other than the CarolinaEast Health System report money market
investments, if any, with a maturity of more than one year at acquisition and non money market
investments at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The North Carolina Capital
Management Trust (“NCCMT") cash portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value, which is the NCCMT's
share price. Money market investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one
year or less are reported at amortized cost.

The CarolinaEast Health System has investments in debt and marketable equity securities, all of which
are reported at their fair value. Debt securities consist of obligations of the U.S. Government as well as
corporate bonds and commercial paper. Marketable equity securities consist primarily of common stocks
that are traded or listed on national exchanges. Both realized and unrealized gains and losses on all debt
and marketable equity securities are included in non-operating income. Interest and dividends on
investments in debt and equity securities are included in non-operating income when earned.

Restricted Investments. The unexpended bond proceeds of the qualified school construction bond are
classified as restricted assets within the Qualified School Construction Bond capital project fund because
their use is completed restricted to the purpose for which the bonds were originally issued.

47



Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Ad Valorem Taxes. In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-
13(a)], the County levies ad valorem taxes on property other than motor vehicles at July 1, the beginning
of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on September 1 (lien date); however, penalties and interest do not
accrue until the following January 6. These taxes are based on the assessed values as of January of the
preceding fiscal year. The majority of the County’s property tax collections occur during December and
early January each year. The taxes outstanding at June 30 are therefore delinquent. To the extent that
County property tax revenues result in current receivables as defined by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB), they are recognized when levied.

Delinquent ad valorem taxes receivable are reported in the financial statements net of an allowance for
uncollectible accounts of $700,000 in the General Fund. The allowance approximates, based on past
experience, the percentage of the original levy which has normally been uncollectible. Net delinquent ad
valorem taxes receivable are offset by deferred revenue in the governmental fund statements because
they cannot be considered a resource which can be used to finance current operations.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. Allowances for doubtful accounts are maintained on all types of
receivables which historically experience uncollectible accounts.

Exclusive of ad valorem taxes, the following summarizes other allowances for doubtful accounts by fund
and receivable type at June 30, 2012:

Component
Unit
CarolinaEast
Health System

Patient receivables (at September 30, 2011) $ 13,311,013

Interfund Receivables/Payables. During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between
individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified
as “due from other funds” or “due to other funds” in the fund financial statements.

Inventories. Inventories of the Health System and the ABC Board in the government-wide statement of
net assets are valued at the lower of cost, on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis, or market. The Health
System inventory consists of expendable items, including pharmaceuticals and general supplies, held for
sale to patients or consumption. The Health System inventories are recorded as expenses when
consumed rather than when purchased. The ABC Board inventory consists of alcoholic beverages held

for sale.

Prepaid items. Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2012,
are recorded as prepaid items.

Long-term cash and investments. Assets whose use is limited reported by the Health System include
assets and accrued interest receivables set aside by the Health System Board for future capital
improvements over which the Board retains control and assets held by a trustee under bond indenture

agreements.
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Bond Issuance Costs and Refunding Gains and Losses. Bond issuance costs and refunding gains and
losses are deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds using the effective interest method in the
government-wide financial statements and in proprietary funds. These costs relate to the 2007
Certificates of Participation and the 2010 Advance Refunding issued in the Governmental funds.

Capital Assets. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost in
the government-wide financial statements and in proprietary funds. Donated capital assets are recorded
at their fair value at date of donation. Minimum capitalization cost is $5,000 for all capital assets. The
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets’ lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are not recognized in the governmental fund statements.
These statements report capital items as expenditures as incurred.

The County and its component units follow the policy of capitalizing interest as a component of the cost of
business-type activity capital assets constructed for their own use in accordance with the guidelines of
GASB C0OD.1400.111, and other related components.

When the County leases capital assets to a discretely presented component unit for a nominal amount,
the County reports those capital assets and related depreciation in the component unit. Depreciation of
all depreciable capital assets is charged as an expense against their operations. Accumulated
depreciation is reported in the statement of net assets. Capital assets of the County are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the individual assets:

Buildings 25-50 Years
Improvements other than buildings 10-40 Years
Machinery and equipment and vehicles 5-10 Years

Capital assets of the Airport Authority, the Health System, and the ABC Board are depreciated over the
estimated useful lives of the individual assets on a straight-line basis.

Intangible Assets. Intangible capital assets consists of goodwill of the Health System associated with
cost in excess of fair value of the net assets of certain entities acquired in purchase transactions.
Goodwill is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 5 to 30 years. At each financial statement date,
the Health System evaluates goodwill for impairment by comparing expectations of non-discounted future
cash flows excluding interest costs with the carrying value of goodwill for each acquisition having a
material goodwill balance.

Compensated absences. For the County’s government-wide financial statements and in proprietary fund
statements, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary-related payments are
recorded as the leave is earned. The County or its component units have made no accrual for sick leave
since there is no obligation for accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, as sick leave does not
vest.
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Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund financial statements, long-term
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities.

In the governmental fund financial statements, the face amount of long-term debt issued is reported as
another financing source and is not considered a fund liability. These statements report debt service
payments (including principal) as expenditures.

Deferred/Unearned revenue. The balance in deferred or unearned revenue on the governmental fund
statements and unearned revenues on the government-wide statements of governmental activities at

year-end is composed of the following elements:

Unearned or Full Accrual
Deferred Unearned
Revenue Revenue
Prepaid taxes not yet earned $ 184276 $ 184,276
Prepaid fees 14,264 14,264
Property taxes receivable, net (General) 1,391,129 -
Property taxes receivable, net (Special Revenue) 38,070 -
Recycling fees receivable (General) 147,510 -
Total deferred revenue $ 1775249 % 198,540
Net Assets

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent constraints
on resources that are either a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or b) imposed by law through state statute.

Fund balances: In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five
classifications designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can

be spent.

State law [G.S. 159-13(b)(16)] restricts the appropriation of fund balance to an amount not to exceed the
sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities, encumbrances and deferred revenues arising
from cash receipts as those amounts stand at the close of the fiscal year preceding the budget year.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable fund balance: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they
are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Prepaids and inventories: portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it
represents the year-end balances of ending inventories and prepaids, which are not spendable

resources.
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Restricted fund balance: This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes
externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.

Restricted for Stabilization by State statute - portion of fund balance which is not available for
appropriation under State law [G.S. 159-8(a)]. This amount is usually comprised of accounts
receivable and interfund receivables, which have not been offset by deferred revenues.

Restricted for public safety - portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for
public safety expenditures.

Restricted for economic and physical development — portion of fund balance that is restricted by
revenue source for economic and physical development.

Restricted for reqgister of deeds — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for
register of deeds expenditures.

Restricted for education, schools - portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source
for the repayment of debt related to school construction projects.

Committed fund balance: The portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes
imposed by majority vote by quorum of the Craven County’s governing body (highest level of
decision-making authority). Any changes or removal of specific purposes requires the majority
action by the governing body.

Committed for capital projects — portion of fund balance committed by the County Board of
Commissioners for the construction of specific assets held in the capital reserve fund. Specific
board action is required to transfer funds out of this fund.

Assigned fund balance: portion of fund balance that Craven County intends to use for specific
purposes.

Assigned for subsequent year's expenditures - portion of total fund balance (if any) that is
appropriated in the next year's budget that is not already classified as restricted or committed.

Unassigned: portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific
purposes or other funds
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Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-
wide statement of net assets.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total
governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net assets. The net adjustment of $(7,269,369) consists of several elements as

follows:
Description Amount
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. $ 97,346,238
Less accumulated depreciation (31,249,006)
Net capital assets 66,097,232

Accrued interest receivable less the amount claimed as unearned revenue in

the governmental fund statements as well as deferred charges for bond issuance

and refunding costs as these funds are not available and therefore deferred in 3,830,643

the fund statements.
Liabilities for revenue not susceptible to accrual but earned therefore deferred

in the fund statements but not in the government-wide statements. 1,576,709
Internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of insurance

to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are

included in the statement of net assets for the governmental activities. 4,031,229
Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, that are not due and payable in

the current period and therefore are not recorded in the fund statements:

Installment notes financing (48,883,550)
Bonds financing (26,300,000)
Capital lease (62,415)
Deferred bonds premium (2,402,942)
Accrued interest payable (318,494)
Other postemployment benefits (1,996,315)
Compensated absences (2,384,762)
Net pension obligation (456,704)
Total adjustment 3 (7,269,369)
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Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balance and the government-wide statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and
changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of
activities. There are several elements of that total adjustment of $2,386,980 as follows:

Description Amount

Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund statements but capitalized as assets

in the statement of activities $ 1,665,265
Depreciation expense, the allocation of those assets over their useful lives, that is

recorded on the statement of activities but not in the fund statements (3,984,617)
The net effect of various transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales, trade-ins,

retirements, and donations (477,645)
The issuance of long-term debt provide current financial resources to governmental funds (87,329)

Principal payments on debt owed are recorded as a use of funds on the fund
statements but again affect only the statement of net assets in the government-wide
statements 6,311,214
Expenses reported in the statement of activities that do not require the use of current
resources to pay are not recorded as expenditures in fund statements.
Compensated absences are accrued in the government-wide statements but not in
the fund statements because they do not use current resources (76,896)
Long-term net pension obligations and other postemployment benefits are accrued in
the government-wide statements but not in the fund statements because they do not

use current resources. (588,823)
Difference in interest expense between fund statements (modified accrual) and
government-wide statements (full accrual) 29,929

Bond refunding costs, premiums and other similar items, are amortized in the
government-wide statements but not in the fund statements because they do not use

current resources (166,878)
Reduction of revenues reported in the statement of activities that do not provide current
resources are not recorded as revenues in the fund statements. (715,845)

Internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of risk management to
individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is
reported with governmental activities 478,605

Total adjustment $ 2,386,980
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At June 30, 2012, the primary government’s cash and investments (excluding agency funds — see below)
are comprised of the following:

Cash on hand 3 10,930
Carrying value of deposits 39,510,358
Investments 15,510,045

$ $55,031,333

Statement of net assets reconciliation:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,888,177
Short-term investments (restricted and unrestricted) 16,143,156
$ 55,031,333

Deposits:

The deposits of the County and its component units are made in Board designated official depositories
and are secured as required by General Statute 159-31. They may designate as an official depository,
any bank or savings and loan institution whose principal office is located in North Carolina. They may also
establish time deposits in the form of NOW accounts, SuperNOW and money market accounts and
certificates of deposit.

All deposits of the County and its component units are either insured or collateralized by using one of two
methods. Under the dedicated method, all deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance coverage
level are collateralized with securities held by the units’ agents in the units’ name. Under the pooling
method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the
State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a
fiduciary capacity for the units, these deposits are considered to be held by their agents in the entities’
name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for noninterest
bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the
pocling method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured
deposits.

The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the units or the escrow agent. Because of the
inability to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the units under the pooling method, the
potential exists for under collateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows.
However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each
depository that collateralizes public deposits under the pooling method. The State Treasurer enforces
standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions. The County relies on the
State Treasurer to monitor those financial institutions. All deposits of the County rest with banks that
have chosen the pooling method. The County, the ABC Board, the Tourism Development Authority, the
Airport Authority and the Health System do not have policies regarding custodial credit risk for deposits.
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At June 30, 2012, the County's (primary government) deposits had a carrying amount of $39,510,358 and
a bank balance of $40,581,157. Of the bank balance, $500,000 was covered by federal depository
insurance and $40,081,157 was covered by collateral held under the pooling method.

At June 30, 2012, the County’s agency fund deposits had a carrying amount of $77,619 and a bank
balance of $82,191. The bank balance was covered by collateral held under the pooling method.

Component Unit Information

At June 30, 2012, both the carrying amount and bank balance of deposits for the Tourism Development
Authority was $293,344. The bank balance was covered by collateral held under the pooling method.

At June 30, 2012, both the carrying amount and bank balance of deposits for the Airport Authority was
$2,195,998. The bank balance was covered by collateral held under the pooling method.

At June 30, 2012, the ABC Board had $12,900 in cash on hand, and deposits in financial institutions with
a carrying amount of $2,304,550 and a bank balance of $2,216,169. Of the bank balance, $545,917 was
covered by federal depository insurance and $1,670,252 was covered by collateral held under the pooling
method.

At September 30, 2011, the carrying amount of deposits for the Health System was $10,963,327 and the
bank balance was $14,204,663. Of the bank balance, $500,000 was covered by federal depository
insurance and $13,704,663 was covered by collateral held under the pooling method.

Investments:

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the County, the ABC Board, the Tourism Development Authority,
the Airport Authority, and the Health System to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations
fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North
Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of
certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers'
acceptances and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT). [n addition to the above, the
Health System may invest in other property or securities in which trustees, guardians, executors,
administrators, and others acting in a fiduciary capacity may legally invest funds under their control.
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The County’s investments at June 30, 2012 consist of the following:

Less Than
Investment Type Fair Value Six Months 6 -12 Months 1 -3 Years 3 -5 Years
NC Capital Management Trust,
Cash Portfolio $ 3,576,143 $3576,143 - $ - $ -
Commercial paper:
Deutsche Bank Finl LLC 2,491,578 2,491,578 - - -
Abby National NA LLC Disc 1,985,074 - 1,985,074 - -
Barclays US FDB LLC Disc 2,485,167 - 2,485 167 - -
Goldman Sach Grp Inc Disc 4,972,083 - 4 972 083 - -
Total investments $ 15,510,045 $6,067,721 $9,442324 § - $ -

Interest Rate Risk: As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest
rates, the County’s investment policy limits the County’s investment portfolio to maturities of less than 5
years. Also maturity dates are to be staggered to avoid undue concentration in specific maturity sectors.

Credit Risk: State law limits investments in commercial paper to the top rating issued by nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs); however, the County has no formal policy on
managing credit risk. Instead, the County informally utilizes the State Law to minimize credit risks. As of
June 30, 2012, the County's investments in the NC Capital Management Trust Cash Portfolio carried a
credit rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor’s as of June 30, 2012.

Custodial Credit Risk: For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of
the counterparty, the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. The County has no policy on custodial credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk: The County places no limit on the amount that the County may invest in
any one issuer.
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As of September 30, 2011, the Health System had the following investments and maturities (Amounts are
in thousands):

CarolinaEast Health System Fair <Than 1-5 6-10 11-20 >Than
Investment Type Value 1 Year Years Years Years 20 Years
US Government Treasury Notes $ 11,323 $ 2670 $ 50988 $ 2664 $ - $ -
US Government Agencies 19,601 1,640 4574 5778 7.511 99
Corporate Bonds 35,726 552 21,794 8,930 876 3,576
Templeton Global Bond Fund 4,296 N/A 4,296 - - -
Equity Securities 85,975 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Hedge Funds 35,613 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Short Term Cash Equivalents™® 7,464 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
NC Capital Management Trust* 11,290 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
NC Capital Management Trust -

Bank of New York Trustee 841 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Total $ 212129 § 4862 $ 36652 $ 17372 $ 8387 $ 3,675

*These amounts include $1,674,030 which is included in cash and cash equivalents.

Interest Rate Risk: As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses, the Health System’s
investment policy dictates that mortgage backed securities or other asset backed securities will never
comprise more than 30% of the fixed income portfolio and corporate debt securities will never comprise
more than 50% of the fixed income portfolio. Additionally, the policy provides that the maximum maturity
of any non-mortgage backed fixed income instrument will not exceed 10 years without the approval of the
Health System’s Board and investment managers, should not exceed a 7-year expected weighted
average maturity for investments in mortgage backed paper and government agencies including Ginni
Maes, Freddie Macs, or Fannie Maes. The maturities in the Templeton Global Bond Fund have an
average duration of approximately 2.8 years as shown in the preceding schedule.

Credit Risk: The Health System’s investment policy requires corporate obligations to meet the
commercial paper rating of A1 by Moody's or P1 by S&P and bond rating in the “BBB” category or better
by S&P, Moody’s, and Fitch. “BBB” securities will be limited to 10% of the fixed income portfolio. No
single “BBB” issue will be greater than $500,000 face value at purchase. Obligations of the U.S.
Government or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government are generally not considered to have credit
risk. The Templeton Global Bond Fund is unrated.
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As of September 30, 2011, the total quality ratings for the above holdings were as follows:

Holdings AAA AA A BBB BB B Total
US Government Agencies 100.00% 100.00%
Corporate Bonds 17.85%  16.00% 54.45% 11.70% 100.00%
Short Term Cash Equivalents 100.00% 100.00%
NC Capital Management Trust 100.00% 100.00%
NC Capital Management Trust -
100.00%

Bank of New York Trustee 100.00%

Concentration of Credit Risk: The Health System’s investment policy states individual cumulative debt
instruments by any one issuer shall be confined to a maximum of 5% of the fixed income portfolio. There

is no concentration of credit risk.

Equity Investment Guidelines: Each equity holding will be limited to 6% of the equity portfolio determined
at the time of investment.

Permissible types of equity investments include equities of U.S. and foreign companies listed on the
NYSE, ASE and NASDAQ traded OTC securities to include common and preferred and convertible
preferred stocks. Equity investments may also include publicly traded mutual funds, unit trusts and other
common investment funds comprised of commingled securities listed on the NYSE, ASE and NASDAQ

traded OTC securities.

Alternative Assets: A fund of funds hedge fund is employed to offer diversification as an investment
alternative with low correlation to fixed income and equity securities. A fund of funds performance is
measured against the performance of an appropriate hedge fund index.

Other Investment Guidelines: The primary portfolio shall contain no derivatives to enhance the overall
yield of the stock or bond portfolio. The Alternative Asset class may use derivatives. Investment
managers must maintain compliance with State of North Carolina laws and regulations, and all other
applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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Capital asset activity for the primary government for the year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land, other
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Vehicles
Equipment
Other improvements
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Vehicles
Equipment
Other improvements
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Business-type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land, other
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings & other improvements
Vehicles
Equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & other improvements
Vehicles
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Capital Capital
Assets Assets
June 30, 2011 Additions Retirements June 30, 2012
$ 9958882 5 98,907 % (83,597) $ 9,974,192

801,613 116,374 (349,342) 568,645

$ 10,760,495 §$ 215281 § (432,939) $ 10,542,837
$ 68,185040 $ - $ (1,120,881) $ 67,064,159
5413,686 550,633 (514,927) 5,449,392
4,754 663 426,287 (809,354) 4,371,596
9,095,848 822 406 - 9,918,254
87,449 237 1,799,326 (2,445,162) 86,803,401
18,981,560 2,331,190 (735,362) 20,577,388
4,316,888 568,984 (506,398) 4,379,474
3,609,086 287,737 (809,354) 3,087,469
2,407,969 796,706 - 3,204,675
29,315,503 3,984 617 (2,051,114) 31,249,006
$ 58,133,734 $ (2,185291) § (394,048) $ 55,554,395
$ 210,428 % 279,254 % - $ 489,682
349,120 731,993 (279,252) 801,861

$ 559,548 $ 1011247 $ (279,252) $ 1,291,543
$ 30,271,492 § - $ - $ 30,271,492
181,558 19,569 (18,432) 182,695
227,138 - (30,737) 196,401
30,680,188 19,569 (49,169) 30,650,588
11,909,703 883,467 - 12,793,170
156,323 19,913 (18,432) 157,804
223,219 1,338 (30,737) 193,820
12,289,245 904,718 (49,169) 13,144,794

$ 18,390,943 $ (885149 § - $ 17,505,794
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Social Services
Economic and physical development
Health
Environmental protection
Culture and recreation
Total depreciation expense, governmental activities
Business-type activities:
Water Fund
Total depreciation expense-business-type activities

Discretely presented component units

$

972,199
1,685,191
478,136
410,459
301,084
86,329
151,219

$

3,984,617

«~

904,718

4

904,718

The following is a summary of the capital assets of the Airport Authority at June 30, 2012:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Capital assets, net

$

9,529,535
2,717,504

12,247,039

9,360,714
14,686,107
1,706,607

25,753,428

13,696,849

12,056,579

$

24,303,618

Title to the real property occupied by the Airport Authority rests with Craven County. The land is
leased to the Airport Authority for an annual rent of one dollar through a lease signed November 1,

1993 and expiring October 31, 2013.
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The following is a summary of the Health System capital asset activity for the year ended September 30,
2011:

Year Ended September 30, 2011

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 4,438,331 $ 2,341,021 $ 6,779,352
Construction in progress 5,401,255 3,801,809 (6,873,040) 2,330,024
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 9,839,586 6,142,830 (6,873,040) 9,109,376
Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized
Intangible assets 15,727,713 - - 15,727,713
Land improvements 3,766,782 120,796 - 3,887,578
Building and fixtures 132,619,295 9,371,102 (118,176) 141,872,221
Equipment 144,868,359 11,668,377 (10,158,443) 146,378,293
Total capital assets being depreciated 296,982,149 21,160,275 (10,276,619) 307,865,805
Less accumulated depreciation/amortization for:
Intangible assets (8,980,507) (518,424) - (9,498,931)
Land improvements, building and fixtures,
and equipment (178,371,299) (19,101,580) 10,228,506 (187,244,373)
(187,351,806)  (19,620,004) 10,228,506  (196,743,304)
Total capital assets being depreciated/amortized, net 109,630,343 1,540,271 (48,113) 111,122,501
Medical Authority capital assets, net $ 119469929 $ 7,683,101 $ (6,921,153) $ 120,231,877

All depreciation is directly or indirectly in relation to the provision of healthcare services. The Health
System has various renovation projects in progress at September 30, 2011. The estimated cost to
complete the projects is approximately $5,586,000.
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Legal title to the Health System's property and equipment, except equipment purchased by the Health
System from unrestricted funds, is held by Craven County. The facilities are leased to the Health System,
under a lease agreement which expires in 2024, for an annual rental of one dollar. In the event of
dissolution of the Health System or its failure to function as a Health System and to operate as required in
the lease, all of its monies, properties and assets shall revert to Craven County.

Health System’s net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, as of September 30, 2011 is as
follows:

Capital assets, as above $ 120,231,877
Capital related debt (Note 4) 2,296,380

$ 117,935497

The following is a summary of the capital assets of the ABC Board at June 30, 2012:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 189,501
Total capital assets not being depreciated $ 189,501
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings $ 1,085,446
Furniture & equipment 488,781
Leasehold improvements 4,907
Automotive equipment 102,376
Total capital assets being depreciated 1,681,510
Less accumulated depreciation 697,766
Total capital assets being depreciated, net $ 083,744
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Note 4. Long-Term Obligations

General obligation bonds and bond anticipation notes:

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the County or
Water and Sewer District that issued the debt. These bonds generally are issued as serial bonds with
equal amounts of principal maturing each year. General obligation bonds payable currently

outstanding are as follows:

Purpose
General government bonds:
The County's general obligation bonds payable at June 30, 2012 are comprised
of the following individual issues:
$20,738,250 2009 Advance Refunding Bonds issued for 2002 School Facility Serial
Refunding Bonds with installments due on December 1 (interest only) and
June 1 (principal of $142,500 to $2,410,400 plus interest) through June 1, 2023
$1,061,750 2009 Advance Refunding Bonds issued for 2001 Community College
Facility Serial Refunding Bonds with installments due on December 1 (interest only)
and June 1 (principal of $7,500 to 209,600 plus interest) through May 1, 2019
$13,855,000 2004 General Obligation Refunding Bonds with installments due on
December 1 (interest only) and June 1 (principal of $330,000 to $1,300,000 plus
interest) through June 1, 2017

Proprietary (Water and Sewer Districts) bonds:
$325,000 Neuse River Water and Sewer District bonds with installments due
September 1 (interest only) and March 1 (principal of $5,000 to $20,000 plus interest)
through March 2016
$600,000 Pembroke Water and Sewer District bonds with installments due November 1
(interest only) and May 1 (principal of $30,000 plus interest) through May 2013
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Amounts

2.0% -4.0%

2.0% -4.0%

3.0%-3.75%

5.3%-55%

6.00%

$

20,097,000

1,028,000

__ 5175000
26,300,000
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Note 4. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

The annual debt service requirements for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type activities
Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2013 $ 2660000 $ 894,906 $ 50,000 $ 5,375
2014 2,610,000 823,031 20,000 2,475
2015 2,570,000 740,138 20,000 1,375
2016 2,530,000 657,038 5,000 275

2017 2,560,000 585,425 - -

2018 — 2022 12,010,000 - -

2023 - 2025 1,360,000 - -
Total $ 26,300,000 $ 3,700,538 $ 95000 $ 9,500

Loans and installment notes payable:

Purpose Interest Rates Amount
General government:
Convention Center 4.72% $ 4,695,000
Qualified School Construction Bond 4.72% 1,838,550
New School/School Projects/Fiber Optic 4.5%-5.0% 19,050,000
Law Enforcement Center/Park/Tryon Palace 4.5%-5.0% 23,300,000
Total General Government 48,883,550
Enterprise:

Water line expansion project-
Northwest Craven Water and

Sewer District 2.66% - Drinking Water Revolving Loan 1,041,485
Total Enterprise 1,041,485
Total loans and installment notes payable $ 49,925,035

The Convention Center project note issued in April, 1999 in the original amount of $9,900,000 is payable
in semi-annual installments consisting of principal payments ranging from $250,000 to $390,000 plus
interest. The note is collateralized by the convention center land and building.

The Qualified School Construction Bond issued in October, 2010 in the original amount of $2,163,000 is
payable in semi-annual installments consisting of principal payments of $108,150 plus interest.
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The New School/School Projects/Fiber Optic debt is a portion of the Certificates of Participation, Series
2007 issued in August, 2007 in the full original amount of $57,635,000. Principal on this portion is due in
annual installments of $1,270,000. The Law Enforcement Center/Park/Tryon Palace debt is also a
portion of the Certificates of Participation, Series 2007. Principal on this portion is due in annual
installments ranging between $1,550,000 and $1,560,000. Interest with respect to the 2007 Certificates
is payable on each June 1 and December 1 at rates ranging from 4.5%-5%.

The 2003 drinking water revolving loan, in the original amount of $1,602,284, is for the purpose of
providing water line extension in the Northwest Craven Water & Sewer District. The note is payable in
annual installments of $80,114 plus interest. The note is collateralized by the water lines.

The annual debt service requirements for installment notes payable are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2013 $ 3,621,300 $ 2,283,403 $ 80,114 $ 27,703
2014 3,651,300 2,123,911 80,114 25,572
2015 3,676,300 1,963,002 80,114 23,441
2016 3,711,300 1,805,551 80,114 21,310
2017 3,741,300 1,640,261 80,114 19,179
2018 — 2022 16,382,050 5,733,430 400,572 63,931
2023 - 2027 14,100,000 2,115,000 240,343 12,786
Total $ 48,883,550 $ 17,664,558 $ 1041485 $ 193,922

65



Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

Changes in long-term liabilities:

Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
General obligation bonds $ 28,990,000 - 8 2,690,000 $ 26,300,000 $ 2,660,000
Deferred premium on debt 2,588,215 - 185,273 2,402,942 -
Loans and installment notes 52,479,850 - 3,596,300 48,883,550 3,621,300
Capital lease - 87,329 24,914 62,415 20,763
Law enforcement pension obligation 424,336 32,368 - 456,704 -
Other postemployment benefit
obligation 1,439,860 719,043 162,588 1,996,315 -
Compensated absences 2,307,867 1,491,637 1,414,742 2,384,762 1,414,741
Governmental activity Long-term
liabilities $ 88,230,128 $ 2330377 $ 8073817 $ 82486688 $ 7,716,804
Due within one year $ 7,716,804
Due in more than one year 74 769,884
Total Governmental Activities $ 82,486,688
Business-type activities:
General obligation bonds 3 145,000 $ - 50,000 $ 95,000 $ 50,000
Other postemployment benefit
obligation 25,486 12,685 7,056 31,115 -
Compensated absences 40,127 27,269 25,901 41,495 25,901
Loans and installment notes 1,148,224 - 106,739 1,041,485 80,114
$ 1,358,837 $ 39,954 $ 189,696 $ 1,209,095 $ 156,015
Due within one year $ 156,015
Due in more than one year 1,053,080
Total Business-type Activities $ 1,209,095

Compensated absences have been liquidated in the general fund and water fund and are accounted for
on a LIFO basis, assuming that employees are taking leave time as it is earned.

Other postemployment benefit obligations have been liquidated in the general fund and water fund as
incurred by employees employed within those respective funds.

Law enforcement pension obligations will be liquidated from the general fund on a pay-as-you go basis.

State statutes provide for a legal debt limit of 8 percent of the County’s assessed value of taxable
property. The County has utilized $74,438,290 of its legal debt limitation of $769,023,194, leaving a legal

debt margin of $694,584,904 at June 30, 2012.

66



Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4.

Component Unit Information:

Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

General obligation bonds and bond anticipation notes:

The Airport Authority currently has the following general obligation bond outstanding:

During the Year

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 175,000 % 6,750 % 181,750
2014 125,000 2,813 127,813
Total $ 300,000 % 9,563 % 309,563

The Airport issued Series 2009 Refunding General Obligation Bonds totaling $800,000 for the 1998
Airport Terminal General Obligation Bonds with installments due on December 1 (interest only) and June
1 (principle of $125,000 to $180,000 plus interest) through June 1, 2014.

Loans and installment notes payable:

Enterprise:

Airport Terminal
(Less) Unamortized charges
Net

Stated Interest Rate Amount
4.09% $ 770,614
(7,176)
$ 763,438

The Airport Terminal note is payable in annual installments consisting of principal and interest at the
interest rate terms described above. The note is collateralized by the airport terminal.

The annual debt service requirement for the component unit installment note payable is as follows:

During the Year

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 389,146 $ 27,527 $ 416,673
2014 381,468 11,850 393,318
Total 3 770,614 3 39,377 $ 809,991

Long-term liabilities for the Airport Authority also include $22,812 of liabilities accrued for other
postemployment benefits. See note 13 for more information regarding other postemployment benefits.
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The Health System had the following bonds payable at September 30, 2011:

Health Care Facilities Revenue Notes, Series 1993:
7.5% interest payable annually on November 1, maturing through 2013 $ 2,187,031

The series 1993 revenue notes are limited obligations of the Health System and are collateralized solely
from the net revenue of the Health System.

Annual debt service requirements, including mandatory sinking fund requirements, at September 30,
2011 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

September 30, Principal Interest Total
2012 3 676,968 164,028 $ 840,996
2013 727,741 113,255 840,996
2014 782,322 58,674 840,996

$ 2187031% 335,957 § 2,522,988

The Health System has installment notes payable totaling $109,349 in connection with capital leases.
Note 5. Interfund Assets/Liabilities and Transfers
Amounts due from/to funds at June 30, 2012 were as follows (balances within fund types are eliminated):

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Debt Service Fund General Fund $ 802,960

The due toffrom between the Debt Service Fund and General Fund represents the year-end accruals
for certain sales taxes which will be received and transferred within the first 3 months of the year-ending
June 30, 2013.

Transfers of resources from a fund receiving revenue to the fund through which the resources are to be
expended are recorded as operating transfers, and are reported as other financing sources (uses) in
the Governmental Funds and nonoperating revenues (expenses) in the Proprietary Funds. Transfers
within fund types have been eliminated.
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The following is a detailed schedule of government interfund transfers for the year ended June 30,
2012:

Transfers In:

County Non-Major Northwest Aggregate

Transfers out: General Reserve  Governmental Water  Craven Water and Non-Major
Fund Fund Funds Fund Sewer District Funds Total

General Fund $ - $ 201,729 $ 4339,049 $§ 18,000 $ - 8 - $ 4558778
Non-Major Governmental Funds 796,310 658 52,149 - - - 849,117
County Reserve Fund 744,550 - 238,394 - - - 982,944
Woater Fund 123,000 - - - 29,480 761 153,241
Internal Service Fund 57,404 - - - - - 57,404
Total Transfers out $ 1,721,264 § 202387 $ 4629592 § 18,000 $ 29,480 3 761 $§ 6,601,484

Transfers consist primarily of the following:

$3,933,718 From General Fund to Non-Major Governmental Funds primarily for future debt retirement
of school bonds.

Note 6. Deferred Compensation Plan

The County offers its employees two deferred compensation plans in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457. One plan is administered by the National Association of Counties (NACO), with
Nationwide acting as its agent in fulfilling certain of the administrative and marketing requirements. The
plan, available to all permanent County employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until
future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement,

death or unforeseeable emergency.

The second plan, administered by the American General Financial Group — VALIC, is available to all
permanent County employees who wish to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The
deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or
unforeseeable emergency.

In January 1997, the County amended the plans in accordance with the provisions of IRC Section
457(g). On that date, assets of the plans were placed in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants
and their beneficiaries. The requirements of that IRC Section prescribes that the County no longer
owns the amounts deferred by employees, including the related income on those amounts.
Accordingly, the assets and the liability for the compensation deferred by plan participants, including
earnings on plan assets, were removed from the County’s financial statements in a prior year.

Note 7. Joint Ventures

The County participates in a joint venture with the City of New Bern to operate the New Bern/Craven
County Library. The County appoints five board members of the ten-member board. The County has an
ongoing financial responsibility for the joint venture because the Library’s continued existence depends
on the participating governments’ continued funding. None of the participating governments have any
equity interest in the Library, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June
30, 2012. During the year ended June 30, 2012, the County appropriated $1,218,323 to the library. In
addition to the New Bern/Craven County Library, the County appoints board members to the three other
Craven County municipal library boards. Total funding for these libraries was $240,809. Complete
financial statements for the New Bern/Craven County Library can be obtained from the Library's
administrative offices at 400 Johnson Street, New Bern, NC 28560.
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The County, in conjunction with Carteret County and Pamlico County, participates in the Coastal
Regional Solid Waste Management Authority. Craven County appoints three members of the seven-
member board. The Waste Management Authority is a joint venture established to provide solid waste
management within these counties. The County has an ongoing financial responsibility for the Waste
Management Authority because it and the other counties are legally obligated under the
intergovernmental agreement that created the Waste Management Authority to honor any deficiencies
in the event that proceeds from other sources are insufficient. The County did not contribute any funds
to the Waste Management Authority during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The participating
governments do not have any equity interest in the joint venture, so no equity interest has been
reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2012. Complete financial statements for the Waste
Management Authority can be obtained from the Waste Management Authority’s administrative offices
at 7400 Old Highway 70 West, Cove City, NC.

The County, in conjunction with Jones, Pamlico, Bertie, Gates, Hertford, Northampton, Pitt, Beaufort,
Camden, Chowan, Currituck, Dare, Hyde, Martin, Pasquotank, Perquimans, Tyrrell and Washington
Counties, participates in a joint venture to operate East Carolina Behavioral Health (“ECBH"). Each of
the nineteen counties appoints one commissioner as a member of the Board of Directors which
consists of 24 members. The County Commissioner members jointly appoint five non-Commissioner
Board members. The County has an ongoing financial responsibility for the joint venture because
ECBH’s continued existence depends on the participating governments’ funding in conjunction with
funding from the State of North Carolina. None of the participating governments have any equity
interest in ECBH, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2012.
The County appropriated $279,027 to the Center during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, which
included money received from the ABC Board designated for alcohol education. Complete financial
statements for ECBH can be obtained from ECBH’s administrative offices at 405 Middle Street, New
Bern, NC 28560.

The County, in conjunction with the State of North Carolina and the Craven County Board of Education,
participates in a joint venture to operate Craven Community College. The County appoints five
members of the eleven-member board of trustees of the Community College. The college is included as
a component unit of the State of North Carolina. The County has the basic responsibility for providing
funding for the facilities of the Community College and also provides some financial support for the
Community College’s operations. In addition to providing annual appropriations for the facilities, the
County periodically issues general obligation bonds to provide financing for new and restructured
facilities. Of the last general obligation bond issue for this purpose, $1,028,000 is still outstanding. The
County has an ongoing financial responsibility for the Community College because of the statutory
responsibilities to provide funding for the Community College’s facilities. The County contributed
$3,455,130 and $210,000 to the Community College for operating and capital purposes, respectively,
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. In addition, the County made debt service principal
payments of $15,750 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The participating governments do not
have any equity interest in the joint venture; therefore, no equity interest has been reflected in the
financial statements at June 30, 2012. Complete financial statements for the Community College may
be obtained from the Community College’s administrative offices at 800 College Court, New Bern, NC
28562.
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The County, in conjunction with nine other counties and 26 municipalities, established the Eastern
Carolina Council (“Council’) formerly known as Neuse River Council of Governments. The participating
governments established the Council to coordinate various funding received from federal and State
agencies. Each participating government appoints one member to the Council’s governing board.

The County, in conjunction with two other counties, governs the operations of the Craven-Pamlico-
Carteret Regional Library. Each participating government appoints three board members to the nine-
member board. The County has no ongoing financial responsibility for the joint venture because the
library’s continued existence depends on the State of North Carolina’s continued funding. None of the
participating governments have any equity interest in the library, so no equity interest has been
reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2012.

The County, in conjunction with 12 other counties, governs the North Carolina Eastern Region
Development Commission. Its purpose is to allow participating counties, including Craven County,
which have the potential to derive direct economic benefits from the North Carolina Eastern Region, to
create a special economic development district, known as the North Carolina Eastern Region
Development Zone. The Commission’s primary responsibility is to promote economic development
within the territorial jurisdiction of the Zone by fostering development projects to provide land, buildings,
facilities, programs, information and data systems, and infrastructure requirements for business and
industry in the North Carolina Eastern Region Development Zone. The Commission is governed by 42
voting members, consisting of three members from Craven County and each of the 12 other
participating counties, and three members appointed by the Global TransPark Authority. The voting
members from each of the counties are appointed by the Board of County Commissioners of the
respective counties. The Commission is responsible for a nonexpendable trust fund consisting of an
initial State appropriation of $7.5 million and 85% of the quarterly distributions of the $5 motor vehicle
license fees collected by the North Carolina Department of Transportation. The motor vehicle tax was
adopted by the legislature and the participating counties and was collected for a period of five years.
The principal balance of the trust funds are nonexpendable and will revolve as loans are made and
repaid to the Commission. At June 30, 2012, the portion of the trust available to be loaned exclusively
to Craven County was $2,029,594.

Note 9. Related Organization

The County’s governing board is also responsible for appointing the members of the board of the
Industrial Facilities and Pollution Control Authority, but the County’s accountability for this organization
does not extend beyond making these appointments. The Authority exists to issue and service revenue
bond debt for private business for economic development purposes. Craven County Industrial Facility
and Pollution Control Financing Authority has issued industrial revenue bonds to provide financial
assistance to private businesses for economic development purposes. These bonds are secured by
the properties financed as well as by letters of credit and are payable solely from payments received
from the private businesses involved. Ownership of the acquired facilities is in the name of the private
business served by the bond issuance. Neither the County, the Authority, the State, nor any political
subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for the repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds
are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.
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Note 10. Additional Social Welfare Expenditures

The benefit payments listed below were issued directly from the State to recipients of the County on its
behalf. These amounts represent additional federal and State financial assistance to the residents of
the County, but are not reflected in the financial statements because the County has no primary
responsibilities beyond making eligibility determinations.

Medicaid $ 105,734,039
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families 598,398
Special Assistance 679,517
WIC 2,595,246
Other programs 841,724

$ 110,448,924

Note 11. Risk Management

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

The County's Internal Service Fund was established to account for a limited risk, self-insurance
program to provide health benefits to County employees. Premiums are paid into the Internal Service
Fund by all other funds (including amounts withheld from employees) and are available to pay claims
and administrative costs of the program. The interfund premiums are based upon actuarial estimates of
the amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims. An excess coverage insurance policy
provides for individual claims in excess of $125,000. A total of $3,394,135 in claims was incurred for
benefits during fiscal year 2012. Payments received from the insurer for claims over the limit of
$69,802 and $15,136 during fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011, have been netted against the claims shown
below. A receivable of $2,872 and $542 at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively were recorded to
account for additional claims paid during the year for which reimbursement from the insurer had not yet
been received. Changes in the fund’s claims liability amounts (net refunds due) for the past two fiscal
years were as follows:

Net Liability at Current Claims Net Liability at
Fiscal Year and Changes Claim Fiscal
Beginning in Estimates Payments Year End
2011-2012 $ 200,346 $ 3,394,135 $§ 3,359,406 % 235,075
2010-2011 $ 199,697 $ 3,309,707 $ 3,309,058 $ 200,346
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During 2003, the County entered into a limited risk, self-funded workers’ compensation claim program
with administrative services provided by a third-party administrator. Premiums are paid into the Internal
Service Fund by all other funds and are available to pay claims and administrative costs of the program.
The interfund premiums are based upon estimates of amounts needed to pay prior and current year
claims. An excess coverage insurance policy provides for individual claims in excess of $450,000. A total
of $167,891 in claims was incurred for benefits during fiscal year 2012. Changes in the fund’s claims
liability amounts for the past two fiscal years were as follows:

Net Liability at  Current Claims Net Liability at
Fiscal Year and Changes Claim Fiscal
Beginning in Estimates Payments Year End
2011-2012 3 144782 % 167,891 $ 264,187 $ 48,486
2010-2011 $ 21,334 % 226,101 $ 102,653 $ 144,782

The County participates in one risk financing pool administered by the North Carolina Association of
County Commissioners. Through this pool, the County obtains property coverage equal to replacement
cost values of owned property subject to a blanket limit of $88 million; general, auto, professional, and
employment practices liability coverage of $2 million per occurrence, and crime coverage of $250,000 per
occurrence. The pool is audited annually by certified public accountants, and the audited financial
statements are available to the County upon request.

The County carries flood insurance through the National Flood Insurance Plan (NFIP). Because the
County is in an area of the State that has been mapped and portions of which are designated an “A” area
(an area close to a river, lake, or stream) by the Federal Emergency Management Agency, the County is
eligible to purchase coverage of $500,000 per structure through the NFIP. The County has purchased
the NFIP coverage for three buildings, the Convention Center, the Administration Building, and the Water
Maintenance Facility. These three buildings are in an “A” flood zone, the 100 year flood area. The
County is also eligible to and has purchased commercial flood insurance for another $4 500,000 of
coverage for the Convention Center.

All County employees are covered under a $250,000 blanket insurance policy for theft and crime. The
Director of Finance is covered by a $250,000 individual bond. The Tax Collector, Register of Deeds and
Sheriff are each individually bonded for $100,000, $50,000 and $10,000, respectively.

Craven County ABC Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The Board has property, general
liability, auto liability, workers’ compensation, and employee health coverage. The Board also has liquor
legal liability coverage. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the
previous year and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any part of the past three years.
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The Craven County Regional Airport Authority has property, general liability, and workers’ compensation
coverage. Employee health coverage is provided through the County’s self-insurance program described
above. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled
claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Effective January 1, 2001, the CarolinaEast Health System established a limited risk, self-insurance
program to provide health benefits to the Health System’s employees. The Health System is billed on a
monthly basis for claims by Blue Cross Blue Shield, the plan administrator. The Health System carries
stop-loss insurance through Blue Cross Blue Shield which has stop loss for individual claims in excess of
$200,000. The claims liability reported at year-end is based on the requirements of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing
and Related Insurance Issues, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to
the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the
balance sheet date and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Changes in the Health System’s claims liability amount for retained risk for the fiscal years 2011 and 2010
were;

Current Year

Beginning of Claims and Balance at
Fiscal Year Changes in Claim Fiscal
Liability Estimates Payments Year End
2010-2011 $ 1,000,000 $ 15384,063 $ 15384,063 $ 1,000,000
2009-2010 1,000,000 13,168,993 13,168,993 1,000,000

Total claims expense is partially offset by employee contributions.

The Health System formerly had professional liability and/or workers’ compensation insurance coverage
with three insurance companies that are now in liquidation:

e PHICO Insurance Company (“PHICQO”). Went into liquidation on February 1, 2002. Provided
professional liability and workers’ compensation coverage for Health System.

¢ Reliance Insurance Company (‘Reliance”): Went into liquidation on October 31, 2001. Provided
workers’ compensation coverage for Health System.

e The Virginia Insurance Reciprocal (“ROA”): Went into liquidation on June 20, 2003. Provided
workers’ compensation coverage for Health System.

Following liquidation of each of these companies, responsibility for further defense and/or payments
relating to cases and claims formerly insured by the companies was assumed by the North Carolina
Insurance Guaranty Association (“Guaranty Fund” or “Fund”). The Fund handled the cases and claims
and paid all costs and expenses relating thereto with limited input from the Health System.
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The Fund notified the Health System that it was requesting reimbursement for both indemnity payments
and defense expenses relating to cases and claims pertaining to all three former insurers pursuant to
N.C.G.S. §58-48-50 (a1)(1). Such reimbursement claim was based on the Health System’s having a net
worth that exceeded $50,000,000 on December 31 of the year in which each of the former insurers
became insolvent.

The Health System notified the Guaranty Fund that it disputed the Guaranty Fund’s legal position with
regard to the Fund’s right to reimbursement for all indemnity payments and defense expenses, including
attorneys’ fees, paid by the Fund in the subject cases and claims. Discussions continued between the
Fund and Health System concerning this matter until the Fund initiated formal litigation by filing a
declaratory judgment action on March 4, 2004.

Prior to the dispute between the Fund and the Health System, the Health System had established certain
reserves to provide for payment of professional liability cases where the settlement or judgment would
potentially exceed the statutory $300,000 indemnity payment limit provided by the Fund. The amount of
the reserve relating to each pending case was based upon assessment of the Health System’s potential
financial exposure for settlements or judgments that exceeded the indemnity provided by the Fund. The
Health System reassessed the nature and extent of its reserves once the Health System became aware
of the Fund’s claim for reimbursement and in anticipation of the Health System having to eventually
reimburse the Fund for all indemnity payments and all or part of defense expenses relating to cases and
claims.

On September 29, 2004, the Fund and Health System agreed upon a resolution of the declaratory
judgment action and entered into a formal Settlement Agreement and Release of All Claims.

As part of the settlement, the Health System paid the Fund $21,918 during the fiscal year 2011.

The Health System continues to maintain reserves to cover reimbursement obligations relating to those
cases and claims that remain pending. These include several professional liability matters that may
involve substantial exposure for both indemnity and defense expenses as well as multiple workers’
compensation matters involving continued periodic benefits payments or that are the subject of pending
judicial appeals. The nature and extent of these reserves are periodically reviewed for adequacy and
reasonableness by management.

Professional Liability: The Health System spent $976,071 for General, Professional, and Umbrella
coverage in fiscal year 2011. These premiums represent a transfer of risk and are not determined
retrospectively. The Health System also insures certain employed physicians and CRNA’s under similar
policies. These policies are occurrence basis policies, meaning claims are covered based on the date
occurred versus when the claim was made.

Other: The Health System carries commercial insurance coverage for all other risks of loss. There have
been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year, and settled claims have not
exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System:

Plan Description. Craven County, the Airport Authority and the ABC Board contribute to the statewide
Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and
disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the Health
System to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Local
Governmental Employees’ Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State
Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute 6% of their annual covered salary. The County,
the Airport Authority and the ABC Board are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The
current rates for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers as a
percent of annual covered payroll are as follows:

Not Engaged Engaged

In Law In Law

Enforcement Enforcement
Craven County 6.98% 7.04%
Airport Authority 9.19%
ABC Board 7.06%

The contribution requirements of members and of Craven County, the Airport Authority and the ABC
Board are established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. Contributions to
LGERS for these entities for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 were as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Craven County $ 1697639 $ 1573947 $ 1,191439
Airport Authority 26,595 25,234 20,437
ABC Board 33,690 31,452 23,852

The contribution made by the County, The Airport Authority and the ABC Board equaled the required
contributions for each year.
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North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System:

Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance:

Plan Description. Craven County administers a public employee retirement system (the “Separation
Allowance”), a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the
County’s qualified sworn law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of
the annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each
year of creditable service.

The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be
authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the Health System to
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.

All full-time County law enforcement officers of the County are covered by the Separation Allowance.

At December 31, 2011 the System’s membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving benefits 7
Active plan members 73
Total 80

The Separation Allowance does not issue a stand-alone financial report.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Accounting. The County has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay-as-you-go
basis. Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund.

Contributions. The County is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement
benefits and has chosen to fund the benefit payments on a pay-as-you-go basis through appropriations
made in the General Fund operating budget. The County’s obligation to contribute to this plan is
established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. There were no contributions

made by employees.
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The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2011
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method, the level percent of pay closed
amortization method over a remaining amortization period of 19 years, and market value asset valuation
method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 5.00% investment rate of return (net of administrative
expenses) and (b) projected salary increases ranging from 4.25% to 7.85% per year. Both (a) and (b)
included an inflation component of 3.00%. The assumptions did not include postretirement benefit
increases or cost of living adjustments.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation. The County’s annual pension cost and net pension
obligation to the Separation Allowance for the current year were as follows:

Annual Required Contribution $ 120,685
Interest on Net Pension Obligation 21,217
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution
(25,314)
Annual Pension Cost 116,588
Employer Contributions made for fiscal year ending June 30, 2012 84,220
Increase in Net Pension Obligation 32,368
Net Pension Obligation, beginning of fiscal year 424,336
Net Pension Obligation, end of fiscal year $ 456,704
Trend Information
Fiscal Year Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
Ended Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation

6/30/2010 104,546 88.32% 398,499

6/30/2011 116,981 77.91% 424 336

6/30/2012 116,588 72.24% 456,704

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation
date, the plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $1,103,347, and the
actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of
$1,103,347. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$2,869,269, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 38.45 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes

to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers:

Plan Description. The County contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (“Plan”), a
defined contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of
Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the County.
Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the Health System to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
North Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement
Officers is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North

Carolina.

The State’s CAFR includes the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code
Section 401(k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement
Officers. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service
Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy. Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the County to contribute each month an amount
equal to five percent of each officer’s salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also,
the law enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the plan. Contributions for the year
ended June 30, 2012 were $212,789 which consisted of $142,829 (required and actual) from the County
and $69,960 from the law enforcement officers.

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Non-Law Enforcement Officers:

Plan Description. The County contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (“Plan”), a
defined contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of
Trustees. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus
investments earnings. All non-law enforcement employees employed by the County participate in the
Plan after a six-month probationary period with the County. The County has no requirement or obligation
under State statutes to contribute to this Plan.

Funding Policy. The County contributes each month an amount equal to two percent of each covered
non-law enforcement employee’s compensation and also contributes up to an additional two percent
match of employees contributions dollar for dollar, and all amounts contributed are vested
immediately. Also, employees may make voluntary contributions to the plan. Contributions for the year
ended June 30, 2012 were $1,437,747, $32,677, and $22,777 which consisted of $763,001, $18,703,
and $11,540 from the governmental activities, business activities, and Airport Authority respectively and
$674746, $13,974, and $11,237 from the non-law enforcement employees for the governmental
activities, business activities, and Airport Authority.
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Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund:

Plan Description. Craven County also contributes to the Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund
(“Fund”), a noncontributory, defined contribution plan administered by the North Carolina Department of
State Treasurer. The Fund provides supplemental pension benefits to any county register of deeds who
is retired under the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS) or an equivalent locally
sponsored plan. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 161 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension
Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina.
The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the Resisters
of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State
Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy. On a monthly basis, the County remits to the Department of State Treasurer an amount
equal to 1.5% of the monthly receipts collected pursuant to Article 1 of G.S. Chapter 161. Immediately
following January 1 of each year, the Department of State Treasurer divides 93% of the amount in the
Fund at the end of the preceding calendar year into equal shares to be disbursed as monthly benefits.
The remaining 7% of the Fund’s assets may be used by the State Treasurer in administering the Fund.
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the County’s required and actual contributions were $10,038.

Health System Plans:

CarolinaEast Health System sponsors and has a fiduciary responsibility for CarolinaEast Medical Center
Money Purchase Pension Plan (primary retirement plan), a noncontributory defined contribution plan
covering all employees of CarolinaEast Health System who meet the eligibility requirements. An
employee is eligible to participate in the plan following four consecutive full-time years of service with the
Health System. Full-time employees are those that customarily work at least 36 hours per week.
Employer contributions are based on a fixed percentage of base earnings for each employee. The
benefit to the employee under the plan is the Health System’s contribution plus investment earnings.
Employees are fully invested after ten years of continuous employment.

The Health System’s contributions to the primary retirement plan were calculated using a covered payroll
amount of $45,856,249 for the year ended September 30, 2011. Total contributions were $4,585,625 for
the year ended September 30, 2011, which represents 10 percent of covered payroll.

The primary retirement plan issues a separate, stand-alone financial report which can be obtained by

contacting the V.P. of Finance, 2000 Neuse Boulevard, New Bern, N.C. 28562. The Plan was created by
act of the Trustees of CarolinaEast Medical Center, who have the ability to amend or terminate the Plan.
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The Health System also maintains supplementary retirement plans under IRS Code Sections 403(b) and
457(b) which are administered by the Lincoln National Life Insurance Company and the Variable Annuity
Life Insurance Company (VALIC). The 403(b) plan is a contributory plan with the Health System
matching contributions, eligible employees must contribute a minimum of 3 percent of their eligible salary,
and have completed 1 year of continuous service. Contributions by eligible employees are matched by
the Health System at a rate of 2% of the employee’s eligible salary. Employees contributing a portion of
the eligible salary to the 457(b) plan do not receive a matching employer contribution. All employees are
eligible to participate in both plans at the date of hiring. The employee contributions are made on a tax-
deferred basis. The benefit to the employee under each plan is the amount contributed plus investment
earnings. Employees are fully vested after one year of continuous employment.

The Health System’s 403(b) contributions were calculated using a covered payroll amount of $48,185,360
for the year ended September 30, 2011. The Health System’s contributions were $963,707 or 2 percent
of covered payroll for the year ended September 30, 2011. Employee contributions to the plan totaled
$4,981,984 or 10.34% of covered payroll for the year ended September 30, 2011. Employee
contributions to the 457(b) plan totaled $864,255 for the years ended September 30, 2011. These plans
are not included in the Health System’s reporting entity and do not issue separate, stand alone financial
reports.

Note 13. Death Benefits

The County has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for
members of the Local Government Employee’ Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-
employer, State administrated, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries
of those employees who die in active service after one-year of contributing membership in the System, or
who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at least one-year of
contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump
sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee’s 12 highest months salary in a
row during the 24 months prior to the employee’s death, but the death benefit will be a minimum of
$25,000 and will not exceed $50,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan.
The County has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. Contributions are determined
as a percentage of monthly payroll based upon rates established annually by the State. Separate rates
are set for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. Because the
benefit payments are made by the Death Benefit plan and not by the county, the County does not
determine the number of eligible participants.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the County made contributions to the State for death benefits of
$25,436. The County’s required contributions for employees not engaged in law enforcement and law
enforcement officers represented .10% and .14% of covered payroll, respectively. The contributions to
the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the postemployment benefit amount and the other
benefit amount.

The County provides $10,000 of group-term life insurance to all eligible employees.
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Healthcare Benefits

Plan Description. The County provides certain post-employment health care and other benefits (“OPEB
Plan") as a part of its total compensation package offered to attract and retain the services of qualified
employees. These benefits are available to retirees who participate in LGERS (Local Government
Employees’ Retirement System) and who, at the time of their retirement, had at least 15 years of
continuous creditable service with the County. The County provides coverage for these benefits through
the County’s partially self-funded health insurance plan. Employees who retire with 15 to 19 years of
service with the LGERS and County may continue their coverage upon retirement at their cost. The
County contributes a portion of the cost for all retirees who have at least 20 years of service with the
LGERS, 15 of which is with the County. The amount contributed by the County increases with each year
of service from 20 years to 30 years. A separate report was not issued for the plan.

Membership of the OPEB Plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2011, the date of the latest
actuarial valuation:

Law
General Enforcement
Employees(*): Officers:
Retirees and dependents receiving benefits 30 7
Active plan members 596 73
Total 626 80

*The General employees group above includes active plan members for governmental activities,
business-type activites, and the Airport Authority totaling 648, 13 and 8, respectively. The breakdown of
retirees and dependents receiving benefits in the government and business-type activities is 35 and 2,
respectively. There are currently no active retirees for the Airport Authority.

Funding Policy. The County pays a portion of the cost of coverage for the healthcare benefits paid to
qualified retirees, based on length of service, under a County resolution that can be amended by the
Governing Board of Commissioners. The County’'s members may elect dependent coverage as well, but
at the expense of the retiree. The County has chosen to fund the healthcare benefits on a pay as you go
basis.

The current ARC rate is 2.83% of annual covered payroll. For the current year, the County contributed
$170,080 or 0.7% of annual covered payroll. The County has established an Internal Service Fund to
account for a limited risk, self insurance program to provide health benefits to County employees. See
Note 11. The County’s obligation to contribute to OPEB Plan is established and may be amended by the
Board of Commissioners.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Postemployment expenditures are made from the Internal
Service Fund, which is maintained on the full accrual basis of accounting. No funds are set aside to pay
benefits and administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they come due.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The County‘s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated
based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows
the components of the County’'s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the
plan, and changes in the County’s net OPEB obligation for the healthcare benefits:

Annual required contribution (1) $ 729,338
Interest on net OPEB obligation 59,314
Adjustment to annual required contribution (61,172)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 737,480
Contributions made (1) (170,080)
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 567,400
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 1,482,842
Net OPEB obligation, end of year (1) $ 2,050,242

(1) The net OPEB obligation at June 30, 2012 consists of liabilities of $1,996,315, $31,115 and $22,812
recorded in governmental activities, business type activities and the Airport Authority, respectively. This
was computed by allocating the total annual required contribution by number of active and retired plan
members for each function, less contributions made during the year for each. The annual required
contribution was allocated as $683,740, $12,056 and $5,458 to governmental activities, business-type
activities and Airport Authority, respectively. Contributions in the current period were $163,024 and
$7,056 related to governmental and business-type activities, respectively.

The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPEB obligation for 2011 were as follows:

For Year Ended Annual OPEB  Percentage of Annual Net OPEB

June 30 Cost OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
2012 $ 737,480 23.1% $ 2,050,242
2011 $ 708,138 23.4% $ 1,482,842
2010 $ 630,520 24.4% $ 940,174

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation
date, the plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $7,442,212. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active
employees covered by the plan) was $24,818,993, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was
30.0%. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare trends. Amounts determined regarding
the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future.
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The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes
to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on
the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit
costs between the employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the

calculations.

In the December 31, 2011 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used.
The actuarial assumptions included a 4.00 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative
expenses), which is the expected long-term investment returns on the employer's own investments
calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend
increase of 9.50 to 5.00 percent annually. The investment rate included a 3.00 percent inflation
assumption. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis.
The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2011, was 30 years.

Health System Plans:

Plan Description. CarolinaEast Health Center sponsors and has fiduciary responsibility for CarolinaEast
Medical Center Employee Benefit Trust, a single-employer, defined benefit OPEB plan established and
governed by the Health System’s governing board. A trust was established April 1, 2007 for this plan and
has a plan year of January 1 to December 31. As such, the Plan’s first fiscal year end was December 31,
2007. The Health System provides other postemployment benefits (OPEB) comprised of health care and
group life insurance benefits to retirees of CarolinaEast Medical Center who have at least 20 years of
continuous full-time service, have attained the age of 55 and were employed prior to July 1, 1995. The
Health System pays the full cost of coverage for these benefits until age 65. Also, retirees can purchase
coverage for their spouse at the Authority's group rates. The Health System elected to discontinue the
post-retirement benefit to individuals employed on or after July 1, 1995. The plan issues a stand-alone
financial report. That report can be obtained by contacting the V.P. of Finance, 2000 Neuse Boulevard,
New Bern, N.C. 28562.

As of the actuarial valuation report dated January 1, 2011 the Health System’s membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving benefits 49
Active plan members 244
Total 293

Funding Policy. Prior to April 1, 2007, the Health System funded these obligations on a pay-as-you-go
basis. During 2007, the Authority funded the actuarially determined net OPEB obligation which was
accrued at September 30, 2006 and made some interim pay-as-you-go benefit payments until the trust
was funded and thereafter the annual required contributions determined in actuarial valuations.

84



Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 14. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The Health System’s OPEB cost (expense) for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2011 was calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the
employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with Statement 45. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize
any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. Prior to
2009, the Health System used one year in their determination; however, due to significant losses in plan
assets during the plan year ended December 31, 2008, the Health System revised the amortization
period to five years. The most recent actuarial valuation is dated January 1, 2011.

The Health System’s annual OPEB cost components, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to
the trust, and its net OPEB obligation for the year ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were as

follows:

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Percentage of Annual Net OPEB
Ended Cost (APC) OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
09/30/2009 $472,669 100.00% $0
09/30/2010 $514,055 100.00% $0
09/30/2011 $497,939 95.00% $0

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. The plan’s financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has
made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. The plan was initially funded on April 1, 2007, the date the trust
was established.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, shown below, presents multiyear trend information
about whether actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

85



Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 14. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

Schedule of Funding Progress

Total Unfunded Actuarial Value of Assets as

Valuation Actuarial Value  Actuarial Accrued Actuarial Percentage of Actuarial
Date of Assets Liabilities Accrued Liabilities Accrued Liabilities
04/01/2007 $4,134,467 $4,803,647 $669,180 86%
04/01/2009 $4,662,084 $4,994,563 $332,479 93%
01/01/2010 $3,704,730 $5,348,769 $1,644,039 69%
01/01/2011 $4,289,091 $5,607,624 $1,318,533 76%

Methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuations follow.

Valuation date January 1, 2011
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Level dollar
Remaining amortization period 4 years
Asset valuation method Market value
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.0%

Health care cost trend rates 10.0% down to 5.0%

includes inflation at 3.0%

Cost-of-living adjustments None

Note 15. Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected,
may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the government expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The County and Health System are defendants in various lawsuits. Management of the County and
Health System and their respective legal counsels feel that these claims can be successfully defended
and intend to resist the allegations of these matters in every way and do not plan to seek out-of-court
settlements. In the event that judgments adverse to the interest of the County and the Health System
should be rendered, management and its legal counsel feel any liability will be covered by existing
insurance policies.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 16. Commitments

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the County entered into a 10-year lease agreement for a
waste convenience center. At June 30, 2012, future minimum lease payments under this operating lease
are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,

2013 $ 11,400
2014 11,400
2015 11,400
2016 11,400
2017 11,400

2018 - 2019 22,800

$ 79,800

Note 17. Subsequent Events

On September 4, 2012, the County received a payment of $856,000 from the ABC Board due to their
excess working capital on hand at June 30, 2012. Over half of this was the result of the change in the law
regarding balances held for working capital by ABC Boards.

Note 18. Pronouncements Issued Not Yet Implemented

The GASB has issued several pronouncements prior to June 30, 2012 that have effective dates that may
impact future financial presentations.

Management has not currently determined what, if any, impact implementation of the following
statements may have on the financial statements of the County,

GASB Statement Number 60, “Service Concession Arrangements” will be effective for the County
beginning with its year ending June 30, 2013.

GASB Statement Number 61, “The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus — An Amendment of
GASB Statements No. 14 and 34" will be effective for the County beginning with its year ending
June 30, 2013.

GASB Statement Number 62, “Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements” will be effective for the
County beginning with its year ending June 30, 2013.

GASB Statement Number 63, “Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position” will be effective for the County beginning with its year
ending June 30, 2013.

GASB Statement Number 65, “Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities” will be
effective for the County beginning with its year ending June 30, 2014.
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Note 18. Pronouncements Issued Not Yet Implemented (Continued)

GASB Statement Number 66, “Technical Corrections — 2012 — An Amendment of GASB
Statement No. 10 and No. 62" will be effective for the County beginning with its year ending June
30, 2014.

GASB Statement Number 67, “Financial Reporting for Pension Plans — An Amendment of GASB
Statement No. 25” will be effective for the County beginning with its year ending June 30, 2014.

GASB Statement Number 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — An

Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27" will be effective for the County beginning with its year
ending June 30, 2015.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

« Schedule of Funding Progress for Law Enforcement
Officers Special Separation Allowance

« Schedule of Employer Contributions for Law
Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance

« Schedule of Funding Progress for the Other
Postemployment Benefits

« Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Other
Postemployment Benefits

» Notes to the Required Schedules for the Other
Postemployment Benefits
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NO

RTH CAROLINA

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING P
ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS’ SPECIA
For the Fiscal Year End

ROGRESS FOR LAW
L SEPARATION ALLOWANCE
ed June 30, 2012

Actuarial Covered
Accrued Payroll for
Liability Year UAAL as a
Actuarial (AAL)- Unfunded Endingon  Percentage
Actuarial Value of  Projected Unit AAL Funded  Valuation of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Date Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
12/31/2006 - 699,460 699,460 - 2,293,461 30.50%
12/31/2007 - 781,597 781,597 - 2,434,754 32.10%
12/31/2008 - 924 441 924 441 - 2,793,133 33.10%
12/31/2009 - 1,133,303 1,133,303 - 2,791,570 40.60%
12/31/2010 - 1,101,074 1,101,074 - 2,773,751 39.70%
12/31/2011 - 1,103,347 1,103,347 - 2,869,269 38.45%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS FOR LAW
ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS’ SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage

June 30 Contribution Contributed
2007 78,085 69.4%
2008 79,477 64.8%
2009 85,509 92.7%
2010 100,874 91.5%
2011 118,390 77.0%
2012 120,685 69.8%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the

actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional
follows.

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Remaining amortization period

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return
Projected salary increases
Includes inflation at
Cost-of-living adjustments
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information as of the latest actuarial valuations

12/31/2011

Projected unit credit

Level percent of pay closed
19 years

Market value

5.00%
4.25-7.85%
3.00%
None



Cra
Other Poste

ven County
mployment Benefits

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of -Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroill Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b - a)/c)
12/31/2007  $ - $ 6,561,695 $ 6,561,695 0.0% $ 22,494,883 29.2%
12/31/2009 3 - $ 7,548,893 $ 7,548,893 0.0% $ 23,558,343 32.0%
12/31/2011  $ - $ 7,442,212 $ 7442212 0.0% $ 24,818,993 30.0%

Craven County
Other Postemployment Benefits
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage

June 30 Contribution Contributed
2010 3 627,976 24.4%
2011 3 702,976 23.5%
2012 $ 729,338 23.3%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was
determined by assumption from an actuarial valuation as follows:

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Remaining amortization period

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return*
Medical cost trend

Year of Ultimate trend rate
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12/31/2011
Projected unit credit
Level Percentage of pay, open
30 Years
Market Value of Assets

4.00%
9.50% - 5.00%
2018



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Other financial information includes additional detailed
analysis of particular aspects of the County’s financial
position and results of operations.

e Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

e Analysis of Current Tax Levy

e Other Detailed Fund Information
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE
June 30, 2012

Uncollected Collections Uncollected
Fiscal Year Balance Credits and Balance
Ended June 30, June 30, 2011 Additions Adjustments June 30, 2012

2012 $ $ 45495 504 $ 44 547702 $ 947,802

2011 953,766 - 702,043 251,723

2010 346,157 - 187,239 158,918

2009 179,737 - 26,840 152,897

2008 151,822 - 15,705 136,117

2007 114,968 - 7,613 107,355

2006 96,486 - 5,758 90,728

2005 78,152 - 3,166 74 986

2004 91,135 - 4,298 86,837

2003 89,051 - 5,286 83,765

2002 80,998 - 80,998 0

$ 2182272 $ 45495504 $ 45 586,648 $ 2,091,128

Less allowance for uncollectible

ad valorem taxes receivable 700,000

3 1,391,128

Reconcilement with revenues:

Ad valorem taxes- General Fund $ 45 452 939
Less: Collection of taxes older than ten years 11,317
Plus: Abatements and adjustments of prior

year taxes 145,026
Total collections and credits 3 45 586,648

91



ORIGINAL LEVY:
Property taxed at current year's rate
Motor vehicles taxed at prior year's rate
Penalties

DISCOVERIES

ABATEMENTS

Total property valuation

Net Levy
Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2012

Current year's taxes collected

Current levy collection percentage

CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Total Levy
Property
excluding Registered
Motor Motor
County-wide Vehicles Vehicles
Property Amount
Valuation Rate of Levy
$9,379,187,768 $0.4728 $44,343,515 $41,824,364 $2,519,151
275,240,759 0.4728 1,301,544 - 1,301,544
- 55,225 55,225 -
$9,654,428,527 $45,700,284 $41,879,589 $3,820,695
64,278,905 320,673 320,673 -
$9,718,707,432 $46,020,957 $42,200,262 $3,820,695
(105,917,511) (525,453) (149,184) (376,269)
$9,612,789,921
$45,495,504 $42,051,078 $3,444,426
947,802 597,063 350,739
$44,547,702 341,454,015 $3,093,687
97.92% 98.58% 89.82%
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Taxes receivable

Accounts receivable

Due from other fund

Restricted short-term investments
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities

Fund balances:

Restricted
Stabilization by state statue
Public safety
Economic and physical development
Education, schools

Committed
Capital projects

Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances
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